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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
 
Stockholders and Board of Directors 
PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC.  
G/F Unit EC-05B East Tower, PSE Center 
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City 
 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC. (the “Company”), which 
comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the statements 
of comprehensive income, statements of changes in stockholders’ equity and statements of cash flows 
for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of       
PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC. as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its financial performance 
and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards 
(PFRS) Accounting Standards. 
  
Basis for Opinion 
 
We concluded our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in 
the Philippines, the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines, and we have 
fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with PFRS Accounting Standards and for such internal control as Management determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements. 
 
 
 
 



Further descriptions of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements are 
indicated in the Appendix I of this auditor’s report. 
 
Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken 
as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 and 
Revenue Regulation 34-2020 to the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with Bureau 
of Internal Revenue and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information is 
the responsibility of the Management of PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our 
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

 
 
UHY M.L. AGUIRRE & CO., CPAs 
Tax Identification No. 006-533-775  
BOA Accreditation No. 4511 
June 27, 2024 valid until May 14, 2027 
BIR Accreditation No.08-005582-000-2024 
October 16, 2024 valid until October 15, 2027 
BSP Accreditation No. 4511-BSP 
Valid for Financial Audit Report for the Year 2024 
NEA Accreditation No. 2023-10-00095 
December 11, 2023 valid until December 10, 2026 
IC Accreditation No. 4511-IC 
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements 
CDA CEA No. 038-AF 
Valid from June 14, 2024 to June 13, 2029 

       
  By: 

 
    
 RUEL R. FACUNDO 
 Partner 

CPA Certificate No. 097806 
PRC ID Expiry Date April 5, 2026 
BOA Accreditation No. 4511/P-002 
June 27, 2024 valid until May 14, 2027 
BSP Accreditation No. 978060-BSP 
Valid for Financial Audit Report For the Years 2023,                    
2024, 2025, 2026 and 2027 
Tax Identification No. 157-796-581 
BIR Accreditation No. 05-008023-001-2025 
March 6, 2025, valid until March 5, 2028 
PTR No. 10472000 
Issued on January 7, 2025 

   Makati City 
 

 
May 21, 2025 
Makati City, Philippines 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



APPENDIX I 
 
 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
 
 



 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO ACCOMPANY INCOME TAX RETURN 

 
 
Stockholders and Board of Directors 
PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC.  
G/F Unit EC-05B East Tower, PSE Center 
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City 
 
We have audited the financial statements of PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC. for the year ended 
December 31, 2024 on which we have rendered the attached report dated May 21, 2025. 
 
In compliance with Revenue Regulation V-20, we are stating the following: 

1. The schedule of taxes paid and accrued by the above Company for the year ended 
December 31, 2024 is attached to the Annual Income Tax Return. 

 
2. We are not related by consanguinity or affinity to the president, manager or principal 

stockholders of the Company. 
 

UHY M.L. AGUIRRE & CO., CPAs 
Tax Identification No. 006-533-775  
BOA Accreditation No. 4511 
June 27, 2024 valid until May 14, 2027 
BIR Accreditation No.08-005582-000-2024 
October 16, 2024 valid until October 15, 2027 
BSP Accreditation No. 4511-BSP 
Valid for Financial Audit Report for the Year 2024 
NEA Accreditation No. 2023-10-00095 
December 11, 2023 valid until December 10, 2026 
IC Accreditation No. 4511-IC 
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements 
CDA CEA No. 038-AF 
Valid from June 14, 2024 to June 13, 2029 

       
  By: 

 
    
 RUEL R. FACUNDO 
 Partner 

CPA Certificate No. 097806 
PRC ID Expiry Date April 5, 2026 
BOA Accreditation No. 4511/P-002 
June 27, 2024 valid until May 14, 2027 
BSP Accreditation No. 978060-BSP 
Valid for Financial Audit Report For the Years 2023,                    
2024, 2025, 2026 and 2027 
Tax Identification No. 157-796-581 
BIR Accreditation No. 05-008023-001-2025 
March 6, 2025, valid until March 5, 2028 
PTR No. 10472000 
Issued on January 7, 2025 

   Makati City 
 
May 21, 2025 
Makati City, Philippines 

 



 
 
 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL WRITTEN STATEMENT OF AUDITOR 

 
 
Stockholders and Board of Directors 
PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC.  
G/F Unit EC-05B East Tower, PSE Center 
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC. for the years ended 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, on which we have rendered the attached report dated May 21, 2025. 
 
In compliance with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, we are stating that the said 
Company has six (6) stockholders owning one hundred (100) or more shares each. 
 
 

UHY M.L. AGUIRRE & CO., CPAs 
Tax Identification No. 006-533-775  
BOA Accreditation No. 4511 
June 27, 2024 valid until May 14, 2027 
BIR Accreditation No.08-005582-000-2024 
October 16, 2024 valid until October 15, 2027 
BSP Accreditation No. 4511-BSP 
Valid for Financial Audit Report for the Year 2024 
NEA Accreditation No. 2023-10-00095 
December 11, 2023 valid until December 10, 2026 
IC Accreditation No. 4511-IC 
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements 
CDA CEA No. 038-AF 
Valid from June 14, 2024 to June 13, 2029 

       
  By: 

 
    
 RUEL R. FACUNDO 
 Partner 

CPA Certificate No. 097806 
PRC ID Expiry Date April 5, 2026 
BOA Accreditation No. 4511/P-002 
June 27, 2024 valid until May 14, 2027 
BSP Accreditation No. 978060-BSP 
Valid for Financial Audit Report For the Years 2023,                    
2024, 2025, 2026 and 2027 
Tax Identification No. 157-796-581 
BIR Accreditation No. 05-008023-001-2025 
March 6, 2025, valid until March 5, 2028 
PTR No. 10472000 
Issued on January 7, 2025 

   Makati City 
 

 
May 21, 2025 
Makati City, Philippines 



PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31, 2024 and 2023

(In Philippine Peso)

Notes 2024 2023

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7 689,507,720     634,874,439     

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8 7,353,070         5,171,816         

Trade and other receivables - net 9 17,762,983       55,267,865       

Advances to related parties 21 13,396,904       11,447,002       

Prepayments and other current assets 10 6,481,163         7,905,283         

734,501,840     714,666,405     

Non-Current Assets

Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income 11 70,000              70,000              

Investment in subsidiary 12 106,949,600     104,200,000     

Property and equipment - net 13 582,941            595,537            

Intangible asset - net 14 10,044,838       5,921,205         

Deferred tax assets 15 7,960,515         6,279,827         

Other non-current assets 16 8,169,227         8,200,734         

133,777,121     125,267,303     

TOTAL ASSETS 868,278,961     839,933,708     

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Current Liability

Trade and other payables 17 659,720,644     635,151,577     

Non-Current Liability

Retirement benefit oligation 22 3,495,716         5,836,834         

TOTAL LIABILITIES 663,216,360     640,988,411     



PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31, 2024 and 2023

(In Philippine Peso)

Notes 2024 2023

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Capital stock 18 166,703,052     166,703,052     

Accumulated profits 20 28,733,801       24,904,731       

Appropriation reserves 20 6,963,372         6,537,920         

Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligation 22 2,662,376         799,594            

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 205,062,601     198,945,297     

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 868,278,961     839,933,708     

(See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements)



PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC.
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

(In Philippine Peso)

Notes 2024 2023

REVENUE 23      32,743,162      26,625,712 

DIRECT COSTS 24      16,848,269      20,152,848 

GROSS INCOME      15,894,893        6,472,864 

OTHER OPERATING INCOME 26      16,414,555      12,543,139 

OTHER INCOME - NET 27            372,213      10,349,728 

     32,681,661      29,365,731 

OPERATING EXPENSES 25      27,442,743      27,132,980 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX        5,238,918        2,232,751 

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 28            984,396            505,065 

NET INCOME        4,254,522        1,727,686 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 22        1,862,782          (822,903)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME        6,117,304            904,783 

Basic Earnings Per Share 19              0.0255 0.0104            

(See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements)



PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

(In Philippine Peso)

Notes Capital stock
Accumulated 

profits

Appropriation 

reserves

Actuarial gains 

(loss) on 

retirement benefit 

obligation

Total

Balance at January 1, 2023 18 166,703,052   23,349,814  6,365,151  1,622,497      198,040,514   

Profit for the year -                  1,727,686    -              -                 1,727,686       

Appropriation of retained earnings per SRC Rule 4 20 -                  (172,769)      172,769      -                 -                  

Other comprehensive loss 22 -                  -               (822,903)        (822,903)         

Balance at December 31, 2023 166,703,052   24,904,731  6,537,920  799,594         198,945,297   

Profit for the year -                  4,254,522    -              -                 4,254,522       

Appropriation of retained earnings per SRC Rule 4 20 -                  (425,452)      425,452      -                 -                  

Other comprehensive gain 22 -                  -               1,862,782      1,862,782       

Balance at December 31, 2024 20 166,703,052   28,733,801  6,963,372  2,662,376      205,062,601   

(See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements)



PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

(In Philippine Peso)

Notes 2024 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Income before income tax 5,238,918          2,232,751         

Adjustments for:

Provision for credit losses 9,25 1,771,053          6,057,487         

Retirement benefit expense 22,25 850,125             732,620            

Depreciation 13,25 380,405             333,355            

Amortization 14,25 366,109             90,846              

Depreciation - ROUADividend income 26 (644,450)            (249,245)           

Unrealized (gain) loss on financial assets at FVPL 26 962,359             (316,001)           

Interest income 26 (14,290,420)       (8,337,362)        

Provision for final income tax 28 (2,750,748)         (1,777,138)        

Operating loss before working capital changes (8,116,649)         (1,232,687)        

Decrease (increase) in:

Financial assets at FVPL (3,143,613)         5,026,646         

Trade and other receivables 35,733,829        (18,373,412)      

Other current assets 1,044,088          (2,314,607)        

Other non-current assets 31,507               (1,398,414)        

Increase in trade and other payables 23,706,302        183,503,592     

Net cash generated from operations 49,255,464        165,211,118     

Interest received 26 14,290,420        8,337,362         

Dividend received 26 644,450             249,245            

Net cash generated from operating activities 64,190,334        173,797,725     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additional investment in subsidiaries (2,749,600)         -                    

Acquisitions of property and equipment 13 (367,809)            (341,191)           

Acquisitions of intangible assets 14 (4,489,742)         (396,054)           

Total cash used in investing activities (7,607,151)         (737,245)           

CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY

Advances to (from) related parties (1,949,902)         25,092,373       

Cash generated from (used in) a financing activity (1,949,902)         25,092,373       

NET INCREASE IN CASH 54,633,281        198,152,853     

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 634,874,439      436,721,586     

CASH AT END OF YEAR 689,507,720      634,874,439     

(See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2024 and 2023 
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

 
PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC., (the “Company:”) was incorporated and registered in the 
Philippines with Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) with SEC registration no. A200113392 
on September 27, 2001, and is holding a secondary license as Broker-Dealer. The Company is 
established primarily to engage in the business of broker and/or dealer of securities of any kind and 
of every description, as well as interests in all such securities, and to engage in all activities that may 
be useful, directly or indirectly, in connection with such business, and in all other activities related 
thereto including online stockbrokerage services through innovative technology and the purchase, 
acquisition, sale, exchange or distribution of such securities or interest in securities and otherwise 
effecting transaction in such securities, the gathering and distribution of financial and investment 
information and statistics and acting as a financial commercial or business representative.  
 
The Company’s subsidiary is PFI Holdings and Management Corp., a corporation incorporated under 
the laws of the Republic of the Philippines, and duly registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC) on March 10, 2020. It is primarily engaged in investment holdings and 
management.  
 
The Company directly owns 92.92% of its outstanding shares and exercise significant control and 
ownership.  
 
The Company’s principal and registered office is located at EC 05B G/F East Tower, Philippine Stock 
Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City and is domiciled in Philippines. 
 
 

2. FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK, BASIS FOR THE PREPARATION AND 
PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Statement of Compliance 
 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards (PFRS) Accounting Standards which includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine 
Accounting Standards (PAS), and Interpretations issued by the Philippine Interpretations Committee 
(PIC), Standards Interpretations Committee (SIC) and International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which have been approved by the Philippine Financial and 
Sustainability Reporting Standards Council (PFSRSC) and adopted by SEC.  
 
Basis of Preparation  
 
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except where a Financial Reporting 
Standard requires an alternative treatment (such as fair values) as disclosed where appropriate in 
these financial statements. 
 
Presentation and Functional Currency 
 
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are presented in Philippine Peso, the 
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (the “functional 
currency”).  All presented financial information has been rounded to the nearest peso, except when 
otherwise indicated. 
 
The Company chose to present its financial statements using its functional currency. 
 
Current and non-current classification 
 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in statements of financial condition based on current 
and non-current classification. 



PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2024 and 2023 
(In Philippine Peso)                                                                                                                                                                                     

 

Page 2 
 

An asset or liability is current when it is: 
 

· expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed or settled in normal operating cycle; 
· held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 
· expected to be realized or due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date. 

 
An asset is also current when it is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged 
or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. A liability is also current 
when there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting date. 
 
All other assets or liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
classified as non-current assets and liabilities, respectively. 
 
Security Valuation 
 
The security position of customers classified as long position pertains to shares of stock that 
customers bought with the expectation that the shares will rise in value. 
 
Use of Judgments and Estimates 
 
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires Management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the Company’s financial statements 
and accompanying notes. 
 
Judgments are made by Management in the development, selection and disclosure of the Company’s 
significant accounting policies and estimates and the application of these policies and estimates. 
 
The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. These are based on 
Management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the reporting date. Actual results 
could differ from such estimates. 
 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. 
 
Going Concern Assumption 
 
The Company is not aware of any significant uncertainties that may cast doubts upon the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. 
 
 

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED REPORTING STANDARDS 
 

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 
 
The Company adopted all accounting standards and interpretations as at December 31, 2024 and 
2023. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except 
that the Company has adopted the new and revised accounting standards starting January 1, 2024 
Adoption of these standards did not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial position 
or performance unless otherwise indicated. 
 
These new and revised accounting standards and interpretations that have been published by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and approved by the PFSRSC, were assessed to 
be applicable to the Company’s financial statements, are as follows: 
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New and Revised PFRSs effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024 
 
Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2024 
 
 Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 

 
The amendments clarify paragraphs 69 to 76 of PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, to 
specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments 
clarify: 
 
 What is meant by a right to defer settlement. 

 That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period  

 That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right 

 That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would 

the terms of a liability not impact its classification 

 
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024 
and must be applied retrospectively. However, in November 2023, the International Accounting 
Standards Board (PASB) tentatively decided to defer the effective date to no earlier than January 
1, 2024. 
 
The amendments have no material impact on the Company’s financial statements.  

 
 Amendments to PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements—Non-current Liabilities with 

Covenants 
 

The amendments specify that only covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or before 
the end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting date (and therefore must be considered in assessing the 
classification of the liability as current or non-current). Such covenants affect whether the right 
exists at the end of the reporting period, even if compliance with the covenant is assessed only 
after the reporting date (e.g. a covenant based on the entity’s financial position at the reporting 
date that is assessed for compliance only after the reporting date).  
 
The PASB also specifies that the right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting date is not affected if an entity only has to comply with a covenant after the 
reporting period. However, if the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity 
complying with covenants within twelve months after the reporting period, an entity discloses 
information that enables users of financial statements to understand the risk of the liabilities 
becoming repayable within twelve months after the reporting period. This would include 
information about the covenants (including the nature of the covenants and when the entity is 
required to comply with them), the carrying amount of related liabilities and facts and 
circumstances, if any, that indicate that the entity may have difficulties complying with the 
covenants.  
 
The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2024. 
 
The amendments have no material impact on the Company’s financial statements.  

 
 Amendments to PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: 

Disclosures—Supplier Finance Arrangements 
 
The amendments add a disclosure objective to PAS 7 stating that an entity is required to disclose 
information about its supplier finance arrangements that enables users of financial statements to 
assess the effects of those arrangements on the entity’s liabilities and cash flows. In addition, 
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PFRS 7 was amended to add supplier finance arrangements as an example within the 
requirements to disclose information about an entity’s exposure to concentration of liquidity risk.  
 
The term ‘supplier finance arrangements’ is not defined. Instead, the amendments describe the 
characteristics of an arrangement for which an entity would be required to provide the information.  
 
To meet the disclosure objective, an entity will be required to disclose in aggregate for its supplier 
finance arrangements:  

 The terms and conditions of the arrangements 

 The carrying amount, and associated line items presented in the entity’s statement of 
financial position, of the liabilities that are part of the arrangements  

 The carrying amount, and associated line items for which the suppliers have already 
received payment from the finance providers  

 Ranges of payment due dates for both those financial liabilities that are part of a supplier 
finance arrangement and comparable trade payables that are not part of a supplier finance 
arrangement  

 Liquidity risk information  

The amendments, which contain specific transition reliefs for the first annual reporting period in 
which an entity applies the amendments, are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2024. Earlier application is permitted. 

 
The amendments have no material impact on the Company’s financial statements. 
 

 Amendment to PFRS 16 Leases—Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 
 
The amendments to PFRS 16 add subsequent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback 
transactions that satisfy the requirements in PFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale. The 
amendments require the seller-lessee to determine ‘lease payments’ or ‘revised lease payments’ 
such that the seller-lessee does not recognise a gain or loss that relates to the right of use retained 
by the seller-lessee, after the commencement date.  
 
The amendments do not affect the gain or loss recognised by the seller-lessee relating to the 
partial or full termination of a lease. Without these new requirements, a seller-lessee may have 
recognised a gain on the right of use it retains solely because of a remeasurement of the lease 
liability (for example, following a lease modification or change in the lease term) applying the 
general requirements in PFRS 16. This could have been particularly the case in a leaseback that 
includes variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate.  
 
As part of the amendments, the PASB amended an Illustrative Example in PFRS 16 and added a 
new example to illustrate the subsequent measurement of a right-of-use asset and lease liability 
in a sale and leaseback transaction with variable lease payments that do not depend on an index 
or rate. The illustrative examples also clarify that the liability, that arises from a sale and leaseback 
transaction that qualifies as a sale applying PFRS 15, is a lease liability.  

 
 If a seller-lessee applies the amendments for an earlier period, it is required to disclose that fact. 
A seller-lessee applies the amendments retrospectively in accordance with PAS 8 to sale and 
leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application, which is defined as the 
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applied PFRS 16 
 
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. 
Earlier application is permitted. 
 
The amendments have no material impact on the Company’s financial statements. 
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Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2025 
 
 PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts 

 
PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering 
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace 
PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of 
insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type 
of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with 
discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply.  
 
The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that 
is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are 
largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a 
comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core 
of PFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by: 

 
 A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach) 
 A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts 

 
On December 15, 2022, the FSRSC amended the mandatory effective date of PFRS 17 from 
January 1, 2023 to January 1, 2025. This is consistent with Circular Letter No. 2020-62 issued by 
the Insurance Commission which deferred the implementation of PFRS 17 by two (2) years after 
its effective date as decided by the PASB. 
 
On November 19, 2024, the SEC approved to defer the effective date of PFRS 17. This is 
consistent with Circular Letter No’s. 2024-19 and 2024-20, dated October 17, 2024 deferring the 
implementation of PFRS 17 for Mutual Benefit Associations (MBA’s) to reporting periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2030 and for Health Maintenance Organizations (HMOs) to 
reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2027. 
 
PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025, with 
comparative figures required, except for MBAs and HMOs.  Early application is permitted. 

 
The Company is currently assessing the impact of these amendments on its financial reporting.  
 

 Amendments to PFRS 17, Initial Application of PFRS 17 and PFRS 9— Comparative 
Information 

 
The amendment adds a transition option for a classification overlay to address possible 
accounting mismatches between financial assets and insurance contract liabilities in the 
comparative information presented on initial application of PFRS 17. The amendments would be 
available for: 

 

 any financial assets, including those held in respect of an activity that is unconnected to 
contracts within the scope of PFRS 17; and 

 both entities that initially apply PFRS 9 at the same time as they apply PFRS 17, and 
entities that had already applied PFRS 9 before the initial application of PFRS 17 where 
those entities redesignate financial assets applying paragraph C29 of PFRS 17. 

 
The transition option would: 

 

 be available, on an instrument-by-instrument basis; 

 allow an entity to present comparative information as if the classification and 
measurement requirements of PFRS 9 had been applied to that financial asset, but not 
require an entity to apply the impairment requirements of PFRS 9; and 
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 require an entity that applies the classification overlay to a financial asset to use 
reasonable and supportable information available at the transition date to determine how 
the entity expects that financial asset to be classified applying PFRS 9. 

 
The amendment does not amend the transition requirements in PFRS 9. At the date of initial 
application of PFRS 9, an entity is required to apply the transition requirements in PFRS 9 to a 
financial asset, regardless of whether it has applied the classification overlay to that asset. 
 
The amendment is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025.  Early 
application is permitted. 
 
The Company is currently assessing the impact of these amendments on its financial reporting.  
 

 Amendments to PFRS 21, Lack of Exchangeability 
 

The amendments clarify when a currency is considered exchangeable into another currency and 
how an entity determines the exchange rate for currencies that lack exchangeability. The 
amendments also introduce new disclosure requirements to help users of financial statements 
assess the impact when a currency is not exchangeable. An entity does not apply the 
amendments retrospectively. Instead, an entity recognizes any effect of initially applying the 
amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings when the entity 
reports foreign currency transactions. When an entity uses a presentation currency other than its 
functional currency, it recognizes the cumulative amount of translation differences in equity.  
 

The amendment is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025.  Early 
application is permitted. 
 
The Company is currently assessing the impact of these amendments on its financial reporting.  

 

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2026 
 
 Amendments to PFRS 9 and PFRS 7, Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of 

Financial Instruments 
 

The amendments clarify that a financial liability is derecognised on the ‘settlement date’ and 
introduce an accounting policy choice to derecognise financial liabilities settled using an electronic 
payment system before the settlement date. 
 
Other clarifications include the classification of financial assets with ESG linked features via 
additional guidance on the assessment of contingent features. Clarifications have been made to 
non-recourse loans and contractually linked instruments. 
 
Additional disclosures are introduced for financial instruments with contingent features and equity 
instruments classified at fair value through OCI. 
 
The amendments are effective for annual periods starting on or after 1 January 2026. Early 
adoption is permitted, with an option to early adopt the amendments for contingent features only. 
 
The Company is currently assessing the impact of these amendments on its financial reporting.  
 

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2027 
 
 PFRS 18, Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 

 
PFRS 18 ‘Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' will replace PAS 1 'Presentation 
of Financial Statements while carrying forward many of the requirements in PAS 1. 
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PFRS 18 introduces significant changes to numerous requirements, primarily how an entity: 

 Presents its statement of profit or loss, including the classification of income and expenses 
and new mandatory subtotals; 

 Aggregates and disaggregates information disclosed in financial statements; and 

 Discloses information about management-defined performance measures. 

PFRS 18 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027. The 
standard is applied retrospectively, with specific transition provisions. Early adoption is permitted. 

The Company is currently assessing the impact of these amendments on its financial reporting.  
 

 PFRS 19, Subsidiaries without Public Accountability 

 
This standard permit eligible subsidiaries to elect to apply reduced disclosure requirements as per 
PFRS 19 and comply with the recognition, measurement, and presentation requirements set out 
in other PFRS Accounting Standards. 
 
These reduced disclosure requirements are expected to balance the information needs of the 
users of eligible subsidiaries financial statements with cost savings for preparers. 
 

PFRS 19 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027. Early 
adoption is permitted. 

The Company is currently assessing the impact of these amendments on its financial reporting.  
 

Deferred effectivity 
 

 Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or 
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 
 
The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss 
of control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The 
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or 
joint venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gain or loss resulting from the 
sale or contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however, is recognized only 
to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture. 
 
On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council deferred the original 
effective date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting 
Standards Board (PASB) completes its broader review of the research project on equity 
accounting that may result in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other 
aspects of accounting for associates and joint ventures. 
 
The Company is currently assessing the impact of these amendments on its financial 
reporting. 

 
 
4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
Principal accounting and financial reporting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its 
financial statements are enumerated below and are consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated. 
 
Financial Instruments 
 
The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statements of financial position 
when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.  
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Financial Assets 
 
Initial Measurement of Financial Assets 
Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration given 
or received. Except for those classified or designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), 
initial measurement includes transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of 
financial assets or financial liabilities. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are 
expensed in profit or loss. 
 
The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets are acquired or the financial 
liabilities are incurred and whether the instruments are quoted in an active market. Management 
determines the classification of its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition and, 
where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting date. 

 
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining 
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest. 
 
Subsequent Measurement of financial assets 
 
Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on the Company’s business model for 
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.  
 
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 
 

- Amortized cost; 
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and 

losses (debt instruments); 
- Financial assets at FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition 

(equity instruments); and 
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). 
 

Debt Instrument and equity instrument 
 
• Amortized cost - Debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where 

those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized 
cost. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is 
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in statements of comprehensive income when the 
asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in 
interest income using the effective interest rate method. 

 
Effective Interest Method 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument 
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts including all fees on points paid or received 
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or 
discounts, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period 
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

 
Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial 
assets classified as at FVTPL. 
 
The details of the above conditions are as follows: 
 
The Sole payment of principal interest (SPPI) test  
 
The Company assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to identify whether it meets the 
SPPI test.  
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‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial 
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are 
repayments of principal or amortization of the premium/discount). 
 
The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the 
consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the 
Company apply judgment and consider relevant factors such as the currency in which the 
financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set.  
 
In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility 
in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise 
to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount 
outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.  

 
Business model assessment  

 
The Company determines the business model at the level that best reflects how it manages 
groups of financial assets to achieve its business objectives.  
 
The Company’s business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a 
higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:  

 

 How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business 
model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel. 

 The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held 
within that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed. 

 How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is 
based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected). 

 The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of our 
assessment.  

 
The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 
‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are 
realized in a way that is different from our original expectations, the Company did not change the 
classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model but incorporates such 
information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.  
 
The Company’s financial assets at amortized cost include cash and cash equivalents, receivables 
from customers, receivable from clearing house, other receivables, refundable deposits (under 
other non-current assets) and due from related parties as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

 
Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks, and cash equivalents. Cash 
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash with maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are 
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. This is stated in the statements of financial 
position at face value, which is its fair value (Note 7). 
 
Receivable from customers 
 
This account pertains to the amount due from customers resulting from brokerage services 
rendered, including value of securities bought in behalf of customers, commission, and other 
charges on cash accounts. 
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Receivable from clearing house 
 
This account pertains to the cash settlement entitlement of Trading Participant/s’ to be received 
from the clearing house during or after the settlement of their “clearing house-eligible trades”. 
These receivables arise from selling transactions for the account of customers and TP’s own 
account on settlement date. 
 
Other receivables 
 
This account pertains to receivables from other sources which cannot be classified under the 
specific receivable accounts. 

 

 FVOCI - Debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for sale, and 
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are classified 
as FVOCI. Movements in fair values are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) and 
accumulated in fair value reserve, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, 
interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in statements of 
comprehensive income. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to statements of comprehensive income 
and presented in “other gains and losses”. Interest income from these financial assets is 
recognised using the effective interest rate method and presented in “interest income”. 
 
Equity instruments at FVOCI are those instruments that are irrevocably elected by the Company 
as at FVOCI at initial recognition. However, such designation is not permitted if the equity 
investment is held by the Company for trading or as mandatorily required to be classified as 
FVTPL.  
 
Equity instruments at FVOCI is subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses on fair 
valuation are recorded as other comprehensive income or loss and are accumulated as a 
separate reserve in equity. Gains and losses of FVOCI investments in equity instruments cannot 
be transferred to the profit or loss, however, on derecognition of the investment, the reserve can 
be transferred to retained earnings. 
 
Any dividend income from the investment in equity instrument is recorded in profit or loss. Only 
the fair valuation gains and losses are recorded as other comprehensive income or loss. 

 
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company’s financial assets carried at FVOCI amounted 
to P 70,000, as presented in Note 11. 

 

 FVTPL - Debt instruments that neither meet the amortized cost nor the FVOCI criteria, or that 
meet the criteria but the Company has chosen to designate as at FVTPL at initial recognition, are 
classified as financial assets at FVTPL. Equity investments are classified as financial assets at 
FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably designates an equity investment that is not held for 
trading as at FVOCI at initial recognition.  

 
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company’s financial assets that are classified at fair 
value through profit or loss amounted to P 7,353,070 and P 5,171,816, respectively, as disclosed 
in Note 8. 

 
The Company reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing 
those assets changes. 

 
Foreign exchange gains and losses  
 
The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency is determined in 
that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. Specifically:  
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o For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not part of a designated hedging 
relationship, exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘other gains and 
losses’ line item. 

o For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI that are not part of a designated hedging 
relationship, exchange differences on the amortised cost of the debt instrument are 
recognised in profit or loss in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item. As the foreign currency 
element recognised in profit or loss is the same as if it was measured at amortised cost, 
the residual foreign currency element based on the translation of the carrying amount (at 
fair value) is recognised in other comprehensive income in the investment’s revaluation 
reserve  

o For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of a designated hedging 
relationship, exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘other gains and 
losses’ line item as part of the fair value gain or loss. 

o For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange differences are recognised in 
other comprehensive income in the investment’s revaluation reserve. 

 
Impairment of Financial Assets 
 
The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not 
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual 
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to 
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash 
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are 
integral to the contractual terms. 
 
ECLs are recognized in 2 stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from 
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit 
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss 
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective 
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). 
 
For cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments, the Company applies a general approach 
in calculating ECLs. The Company recognizes a loss allowance based on either 12-month ECL or 
lifetime ECL, depending on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on its cash 
and cash equivalents and short-term investments since initial recognition. 
 
For receivables from customers, the Company applies the provision of Securities Regulation Code 
(SRC) Rule 52.1.11 and Risk Based Capital Adequacy. The Company’s Credit Losses was computed 
based on the classification, credit loss rate and basis specified in SRC Rule 52.1.11. 
 
To measure the expected credit losses, debt instruments measured at amortized cost have been 
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and days past due.  
 
For assets carried at amortized cost such as receivables, the Company assesses on a forward-
looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt financial assets carried at amortised 
cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk. 
 
An entity may use practical expedients for example, provision matrix using its historical credit loss 
experience as relevant. e.g., a provision matrix specifies fixed provision rates depending on the 
number of days that a trade receivable is past due. 
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To measure the credit losses, receivables were classified based on the provision of SRC Rule No. 
52.1.11.2, as amended thru SEC Memorandum Circular 11-2023, as follows:  

Classification 

T+0 to T+1 

T+2 to T+12 

T+13 to T+30 

T+31 up 

 
The loss rates are based on the provision of SRC Rule No. 52.1.11.3, as amended thru SEC 
Memorandum Circular 11-2023, as follows: 

 

Classification Matrix Base 

T+0 to T+1 0 Total Receivables (TR) 

T+2 to T+12 2% TR 

T+13 to T+30 50% TR less collateral (net of haircut) 

T+31 up 100% TR less collateral (net of haircut) 

 
The credit loss was computed by getting for each doubtful account an amount equivalent to the 
provision of the amount outstanding net of collateral (net of haircut). Basis for the computation would 
be individual accounts. 
 

Offsetting Financial Instruments 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statements of financial 
position when, and only when, the Company has an enforceable legal right to offset the amounts and 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.  
This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities 
are presented gross in the statements of financial position. 
 

Derecognition of financial assets 
 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company 
recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 
If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial 
asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized 
borrowing for the proceeds received. 
 

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or expired.  The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss. 
 

On disposal of a debt instrument, the difference between the carrying amount and the sale proceeds 
is recognised in statements of comprehensive income. Any amount previously recognised in OCI 
relating to that asset is reclassified to statements of comprehensive income. 
 
On disposal of an equity investment, the difference between the carrying amount and sales proceed 
is recognised in statements of comprehensive income if there was no election made to recognise fair 
value changes in OCI. If there was an election made, any difference between the carrying amount 
and sales proceed amount would be recognised in OCI and transferred to retained earnings along 
with the amount previously recognised in OCI relating to that asset. 
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Trade receivables that are factored out to banks and other financial institutions with recourse to the 
Company are not derecognised until the recourse period has expired and the risks and rewards of 
the receivables have been fully transferred. The corresponding cash received from the financial 
institutions is recorded as borrowings. 
 
Financial liabilities and equity 
 
Initial Recognition and Measurement of Financial Liabilities 
 
The Company classifies its financial liabilities at initial recognition in the following categories: at fair 
value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities.  As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the 
Company only holds financial liabilities classified as other financial liabilities. 
 
Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated at fair value through profit 
or loss, are classified as other financial liabilities, where the substance of the contractual arrangement 
results in the Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the 
holder.  Other financial liabilities include payable to customers, payable to clearing house, other 
payables (excluding balances payable to government agencies) and mortgage payables. 
 
Payable to customers 
 
This account is used to record the amount due to customers arising from brokerage services 
rendered, including value of securities sold in behalf of customers, commission, and other charges. 
 
Payable to clearing house 
 
This account is used to record cash settlement obligations of TPs for payment to clearing house to 
facilitate the settlement of their “Clearing House-Eligible Trades”. 
 

Subsequent Measurement of Financial Liabilities 
 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
 

a) Financial Liabilities at FVTPL. Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for 
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL. Financial 
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing 
in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by 
the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as 
defined by PFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading 
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 
 
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statements of 
comprehensive income. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value 
through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in 
PFRS 9 are satisfied. 

 
The Company has no any financial liability as at FVTPL. 
 

b) Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and 
losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through 
the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The 
EIR amortization is included under “Finance costs” account in the statements of 
comprehensive income.  
 
Classified under this category is trade and other payables (excluding balances payable to 
government agencies). 
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Derecognition of financial liabilities 

 
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial 
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.  
 
When the Company exchanges with the existing lender one debt instrument into another one with 
substantially different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original 
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, the Company accounts for 
substantial modification of terms of an existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment of the original 
financial liability and the recognition of a new liability. It is assumed that the terms are substantially 
different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees 
paid net of any fees received and discounted using the original effective interest rate is at least 10 
per cent different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original 
financial liability. If the modification is not substantial, the difference between: (1) the carrying amount 
of the liability before the modification; and (2) the present value of the cash flows after modification 
is recognised in profit or loss as the modification gain or loss within other gains and losses. 
 
Equity Instruments 
 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the 
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 
 

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity. 
No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the 
Company’s own equity instruments. 
 
Compound instruments 
 
The component parts of convertible loan notes issued by Company are classified separately as 
financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and 
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled 
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the 
Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.  
 
At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market 
interest rate for a similar non-convertible instrument. This amount is recorded as a liability on an 
amortized cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the 
instrument’s maturity date. The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the 
amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is 
recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In 
addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is 
exercised, in which case the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to miscellaneous 
contributed capital. Where the conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the 
convertible loan note, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to reserve fund. No gain or 
loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option. 
 
Classification of Financial Instruments Between Liability and Equity 
 

A financial instrument is classified as liability if it provides for a contractual obligation to: 

 deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; 

 exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are 
potentially unfavorable to the Company; or 

 satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial 
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares. 
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If the Company does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial asset 
to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liability. The 
components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are 
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after 
deducting from the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the 
liability component on the date of issue. 
 
Offsetting Financial Instruments. 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statements of financial 
position when, and only when, the Company has an enforceable legal right to offset the amounts and 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.  This 
is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are 
presented gross in the statements of financial position. 
 
‘‘Day 1’’ Difference.  
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other observable 
current market transactions of the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables 
include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference between the 
transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ profit) in profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition as 
some other type of asset. In cases where no observable data is used, the difference between the 
transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss when the inputs become 
observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company determines 
the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1’ profit amount. 
 
Fair Value Measurement and Valuation Techniques  
 
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair 
value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for 
measurement and/or disclosure purposes, when necessary, based on the market values, being the 
estimated amount for which an asset could be exchanged on the date of the valuation after proper 
marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion. 
When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is 
disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability. 
 
The different levels of fair value of financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method 
have been defined as follows: 
 

 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities; 
 Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices include within level 1 that are observable for the asset 

or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and 
 Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 

(unobservable inputs). 
 
For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by using 
appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include net present value techniques, 
comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, options pricing models 
and other relevant valuation models. 
 
Investment in Subsidiary 
 
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company has the power to govern the financial and 
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, generally accompanying a shareholding 
of more than half of the voting rights.  
 
The Company applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The 
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, 
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the 
Company. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from 
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a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent 
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the 
acquisition date. On an acquisition by-acquisition basis, the Company recognizes any non-controlling 
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of 
the recognized amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed 
as incurred. 
 
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s 
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date 
through profit or loss. 
 
The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the 
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration 
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than 
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the 
difference is recognised directly in the statements of comprehensive income. 
 
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between the Company 
and its subsidiary, which are related parties, are eliminated in full. Intra-group losses are also 
eliminated but may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the financial statements. 
 
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as 
equity transactions—that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. For 
purchases from noncontrolling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the 
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. 
Gains or losses on disposals to noncontrolling interests are also recorded in equity.  
 
When the Company ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its 
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or 
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for purposes of subsequently accounting for the 
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously 
recognized in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the 
Company had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts 
previously recognized in other comprehensive are reclassified to profit or loss. 
 
Property and Equipment  
  
Property and equipment are initially recognized at cost and subsequently measured at cost less any 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of an asset consists of its purchase price 
and costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. 
 
Subsequent expenditures relating to an item of property and equipment that have already been 
recognized are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic 
benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will flow to 
the Company.  All other subsequent expenditures are recognized as expenses in the period in which 
those are incurred. 
  

Depreciation commences once the assets are available for use and is computed on the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 
 

Transportation equipment 5 years 

Office furniture, fixtures, and equipment 3 years 

 
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter between the improvements’ useful life of 
10 years or the lease term. 
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If there is reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, 
assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis 
as owned assets, otherwise the assets are depreciated over the assets’ useful lives of 10 years or, 
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease. 
 
When the use of a property changes from property and equipment to investment property, the property 
is remeasured to fair value and reclassified as investment property. Any gain arising on 
remeasurement is recognized in profit or loss to the extent the gain reverses a previous impairment 
loss on the specific property, with any remaining gain recognized in other comprehensive income and 
presented in the revaluation reserve in equity. Any loss is recognized in other comprehensive income 
and presented in the revaluation reserve in equity to the extent that an amount had previously been 
included in the revaluation reserve relating to the specific property, with any remaining loss recognized 
immediately in profit or loss. 
 
An item of property and equipment is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from use or disposal.  Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a property, plant and 
equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized. 
 
Fully depreciated property and equipment are retained in the account until they are no longer in use 
and no further depreciation is charged against current operation. 
 
Intangible Assets  
 
Intangible Assets Acquired Separately 
Intangible assets with finite useful lives acquired separately are initially carried at cost.  Subsequently, 
intangible assets with definite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful lives.  
 

Trading right Indefinite 

Computer software 20 years 

 
Trading right was acquired, together with Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) shares, in exchange for 
the PSE membership seat under the conversion program of PSE. The trading right is carried at the 
amount allocated from the original cost of the exchange membership seat (after a corresponding 
allocation was made to the value of the PSE shares), less allowance for impairment loss. 
 
The trading right is deemed to have an indefinite useful life as there is no foreseeable limit to the 
period over which this asset is expected to generate net cash inflows for the Company. 
 
Computer software represents the total development costs incurred to bring the software to its usable 
condition. 
 
The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting 
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.  
 
Intangible assets with indefinite life are not amortized.  However, such assets are reviewed annually 
to ensure the carrying amount does not exceed the recoverable amount regardless of whether an 
indicator of impairment is present. The Company considers its trading right as having an indefinite 
useful life for the reason that no foreseeable limit to the cash flows generated by the asset and is 
reviewed each year to determine whether events and circumstances continue to support an indefinite 
life assessment for the asset. Instead of amortization, trading rights are evaluated for impairment 
yearly by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount, and recognizing any excess of 
the carrying amounts over the recoverable amounts as an impairment loss. 
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An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized. 
 
Other Assets 
 
Other assets, either current or non-current is the Company’s assets that are not considered to be 
major account and individually presented in the Company’s statements of financial position. These 
are measured at transaction costs. These assets are classified in statements of financial position as 
current when they are reasonably expected to be consumed, sold or converted into cash within one 
year or the entity’s normal operating cycle whichever is longer. Otherwise, these assets are classified 
as non-current. 
 
Other current assets are initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid. 
Subsequently, these are charged to profit or loss as they are consumed in the operations or expire 
with the passage of time. This account is consisting of creditable withholding tax, input VAT and 
prepayments. 
 
Creditable withholding tax 
 
Creditable withholding tax (CWT) is the tax withheld by the withholding agent from payment to the 
seller for the sale of the seller's ordinary asset/services. CWT is prepayments of income tax that has 
future economic benefits which is creditable against income tax payable of the seller. 
 
Input VAT 
 
Input VAT is VAT on purchases of goods and services and the current portion of deferred input VAT 
on purchases of capital goods. These are creditable to VAT liability of the Company. 
 
Prepayments 
 
Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash. 
 
Other noncurrent assets account includes refundable deposits and deferred input VAT. 
 
Refundable deposits 
 
Refundable deposits pertain to deposits for rental which is refundable at the end of the respective 
agreements. 
 

Deferred input VAT  
 
Deferred input VAT pertains to the remaining balance of input tax on purchases of capital goods 
exceeding one million pesos amortized over a period of sixty (60) months. 
 
Impairment of Non-Financial Assets  
 
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that its non-financial 
assets, which include investment in subsidiary, investment property, property and equipment, and 
intangible assets. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in 
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the 
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of 
allocation can be identified, assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise 
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and 
consistent allocation basis can be identified. 
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested 
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. 
 
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 
 
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no 
impairment loss been recognized for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an 
impairment loss is recognized as income. 
 
Other Liabilities 
 
Other liabilities, either current or non-current is the Company’s liabilities that are not considered to be 
major account and individually presented in the Company’s statements of financial position. These 
are measured at transaction costs. These liabilities are classified in statements of financial position 
as current when they are reasonably expected to be paid or purchased within one year or the entity’s 
normal operating cycle whichever is longer. Otherwise, these liabilities are classified as non-current. 
 
Other current liabilities include government or statutory payables such as SSS premium and loan for 
Social Security System (SSS), HDMF premium and loan for Home Development Mutual Fund 
(HDMF), Philhealth premium and loan and withholding tax for Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR). 
These are measured at transaction cost. 
 
Accruals, if any, are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but 
not yet paid. The amount or timing of accruals includes estimation but the uncertainties are generally 
much less than the provisions.  
 
Employee Benefits 
 
Post-employment Benefits 
 
The retirement benefit costs comprise of the service cost, net interest on the net defined benefit 
liability or asset and remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset. 
 
Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized 
when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by 
independent qualified actuaries. 
 
The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined 
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense 
in the statements of profit or loss.  
 
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive 
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statements of changes in equity and in the 
balance sheet.  
 
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or 
curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.  
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Short-term Benefits 
 
The Company recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an expense for services 
rendered by employees during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given by the Company to 
its employees include salaries and wages, social security contributions, short-term compensated 
absences, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits.  
 
Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 
 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation, whether legal or constructive, 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle 
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 
 
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement 
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 
 
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized because their existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company. 
 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits is remote. 
 
Equity 
 
Capital Stock 
Capital stock represents the normal value shares that have been issued. 
 
Equity reserves represents the accumulated other comprehensive income presented as separate 
component in the stockholder’s equity. 
 
Retained Earnings 
Retained earnings represent all current and prior results of operations as reported in the statements 
of comprehensive income, movements by dividend payment and distribution, transfer to and from 
appropriation, and changes in accounting policy and errors, if any. 
 
Unappropriated retained earnings include cumulative balance of periodic profit/loss and reduced by 
dividends, if any, on capital stock. Dividends on capital stock are deducted from equity when they are 
declared by the Company’s stockholders. 
 
Appropriated retained earnings are composed of retained earnings set aside by action of the Board 
of Directors for a specific use other than funds available for payment to shareholders. 
 
Revenue and Expense Recognition 
 

The Company revenue arises mainly from commissions. 
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When determining Company performance obligations, the Company assesses its revenue 
arrangements against specific criteria to determine if the Company is acting as principal or agent. The 
Company considers both the legal form and the substance of our agreement, to determine each party’s 
respective roles in the agreement. The Company is acting as a principal when it has control over the 
respective services before the Company renders those. When Company role in a transaction is that 
of principal, revenue is presented on a gross basis, otherwise, revenue is presented on a net basis. 
 
To determine whether to recognize revenue, Company follows a five-step process: 
 

(1) Identifying the contract with a customer; 
(2) Identifying the performance obligation; 
(3) Determining the transaction price; 
(4) Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations; and 
(5) Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligations are satisfied. 

 
The Company determines whether a contract with the customer exists by evaluating whether the 
following gating criteria are present: 
 

(1) The parties to the contract have approved the contract either in writing, orally or in accordance 
with other customary business practices; 

(2) Each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred or performed can be 
identified; 

(3) The payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred or performed can be identified; 
(4) The contract has commercial substance (i.e., the risk, timing or amount of the future cash flows 

is expected to change as a result of the contract); and 
(5) Collection of the consideration in exchange of the goods and services is probable. 

 
Revenue is recognized only when (or as) Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring 
control of the promised goods or services to a customer. The transfer of control can occur over time 
or at a point in time. 
 
A performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time unless it meets one of the following criteria, in 
which case it is satisfied over time: 
 

(1) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s 
performance as the Company performs; 

(2) The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the 
asset is created or enhanced; and 

(3) The Company performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company 
and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. 

 
Revenue is measured by reference to the fair value of the consideration received or receivable by the 
Company for services provided, excluding value-added tax (VAT). 
  
In addition, the following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.  
 

Commission 
 
Revenue is recognized when the performances of contractually agreed tasks have been substantially 
rendered. Commissions earned are based on customer’s trading volume. 
 
Revenues outside the scope of PFRS 15  
 
Trading gains (losses) 
 
Results arising from trading activities include all gains and losses from changes in fair value for 
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL and gains and losses from disposal of investment 
securities at FVTPL and debt securities at FVOCI/AFS. Unrealized trading gains and losses comprise 
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changes in the fair value of financial instruments for the period and from reversal of prior period’s 
unrealized gains and losses for financial instruments which were realized in the reporting period. 
Realized gains and losses on disposals of financial instruments classified as at FVTPL are calculated 
using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. They represent the difference between an instrument’s 
initial carrying amount and disposal amount. 
 
Dividend Revenue 
 
Dividend revenue is recognized when the Company’s rights to receive payment have been 
established, provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
amount of income can be measured reliably. 
 
Rental Revenue 

 
Revenue from rental is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the lease. 
 
Interest Revenue 
 
Interest revenue is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and 
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset’s net carrying amount. 
 
Other income 
 
Other income is recognized when earned. 
 
Costs and expenses are recognized in the profit or loss upon utilization of the goods or services or at 
the date they are incurred. All finance costs are reported in profit or loss on an accrual basis. 
 
Leases 

 

 Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

The Company apply the short-term lease recognition exemption to our short-term leases (i.e., 
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do 
not contain a purchase option). The Company also apply the lease of low-value assets 
recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low value. Lease payments on short-term 
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term. 

 

 Significant judgment in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options 

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with 
any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, 
or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be 
exercised. The Company has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for 
additional terms of three to five years. The Company applies judgment in evaluating whether it 
is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew. That is, it considers all relevant factors that 
create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the 
Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances 
that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew 
(e.g., a change in business strategy). 

 

Lessor accounting under PAS 17 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under PFRS 16. 
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in PAS 17 and 
distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases. 
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Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation 
 
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the 
Company’s functional currency, i.e., foreign currencies, are recognized at the rates of exchange 
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary 
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates 
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in 
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. 
 
Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for: 
 

 exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction 
for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are 
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings; and 

 exchange differences arising on non-monetary assets and liabilities where the gains and 
losses of such non-monetary items are recognized directly in equity. 

 
Related Parties and Related Party Transactions 
 
Parties are considered related if one party has control, joint control, or significant influence over the 
other party in making financial and operating decisions.  The key management personnel of the 
Company, post-employment benefit plans for the benefit of Company’s employees, and close 
members of the family of any individuals owning directly or indirectly a significant voting power of the 
Company that gives them significant influence in the financial and operating policy decisions of the 
Company are also considered to be related parties.  
 
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related parties, 
regardless of whether a price is charged. Transactions between related parties are accounted for at 
arm’s-length prices or on terms similarly offered to non-related entities in an economically comparable 
market. 
 
Taxation 
 
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 
 
Current Tax 
 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as 
reported in the statements of comprehensive income because of items of income or expense that are 
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s 
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
by the end of the reporting period. 
 
Deferred Tax 
 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of 
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. 
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward 
of unused tax credits from excess Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) over Regular Corporate 
Income Tax (RCIT) and unused Net Operating Loss Carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences 
and carry forward of unused MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized. Deferred income tax, 
however, is not recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction that affects neither 
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets arising 
from deductible temporary differences are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there 
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and 
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to 
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of 
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in 
which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying 
amount of its assets and liabilities.  
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net 
basis. 
 
Current and Deferred Tax for the Period 
 
Current and deferred tax are recognized as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when they 
relate to items that are recognized outside profit or loss, whether in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognized outside profit or loss. 
 
Value-Added Tax (VAT) 

 

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT except:  
 
•.  Where the VAT incurred on the purchase of an asset or service is not recoverable from the tax 
authority, in which case the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or part 
of the expense item as applicable; and  
•.  Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included. 
 
The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included as part of 
receivables or payables in the Company’s statements of financial position. 
 
Events after the Reporting Date 
 
The Company identifies subsequent events as events that occurred after the reporting date but before 
the date when the financial statements were authorized for issue.  Any subsequent events that 
provide additional information about the Company’s position at the reporting date, adjusting events, 
are reflected in the financial statements, while subsequent events that do not require adjustments, 
non-adjusting events, are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material. 
 
 
5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 
UNCERTAINTY 
 
Critical Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies 
 
The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving estimations that Management has 
made in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant 
effect on the amounts recognized in financial statements. 
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Determination of Timing of Satisfaction of Performance Obligation 
 
Trade commissions 
 
The Company determines that its revenue from trade commissions shall be recognized at a point in 
time when the broker-dealer has fulfilled its performance obligations, which are filling out the 
customer’s order and entering into a trade contract on behalf of the customer. 
 
Determination of Credit Losses on Receivables from Customers 
 
The Company uses the provisions and schedules provided in SRC Rule 52.1.11, as amended thru 
SEC Memorandum Circular 11-2023 to calculate ECL for receivables from customers. The provision 
rates classification and basis are all based in SRC Rule 52.1.11.3, as amended thru SEC 
Memorandum Circular 11-2023. Details about the ECL on the Company’s financial assets at 
amortized cost are disclosed in Note 9. 
 
Evaluation of Business Model Applied in Managing Financial Instruments 
 
Upon adoption of PFRS 9, the Company developed business models which reflect how it manages 
its portfolio of financial instruments. The Company’s business models need not be assessed at entity 
level or as a whole but shall be applied at the level of a portfolio of financial instruments (i.e., group 
of financial instruments that are managed by the Company and not on an instrument-by-instrument 
basis (i.e., not based on intention or specific characteristics of individual financial instrument)). 
 
Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with renewal and termination options 
 
The Company has entered into lease contracts for some of the office space it occupies. Beginning 
January 1, 2019, the Management exercises judgment in determining whether it is reasonably certain 
that an extension or termination option will be exercised. Lease contracts which are short-term and 
have low value are considered as operating leases and rental payments are treated as expense. 
 
Before the application of PFRS 16, the Management exercises judgment in determining whether all 
significant risk and benefits of ownership on these properties will be retained by the Company. In 
determining significant risk and benefits of ownership, the Management considered, among others, 
the significance of the lease term as compared with the estimated useful life of the related asset. The 
Management accordingly accounted for these as operating leases. 
 
 Determining Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
 
The Company carries certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires extensive 
use of accounting estimates and judgment. While significant components of fair value measurement 
were determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e., market prices, interest rates, etc.), the 
amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Company utilized a different valuation methodology. 
Any changes in fair value of these financial assets and liabilities would affect the statements of 
comprehensive income and statements of changes in stockholders’ equity of the Company. 
 
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 
 
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 
 
Estimating Useful Lives of Assets 
 
The useful lives of the Company’s assets with definite life are estimated based on the period over 
which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of these assets are 
reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical 
wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the 
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Company’s assets. In addition, the estimation of the useful lives is based on Company’s collective 
assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. It 
is possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in 
estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded 
expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances. A 
reduction in the estimated useful lives of investment property, property and equipment and intangible 
assets would increase the recognized operating expenses and decrease non-current assets 
 
The carrying amounts of property and equipment amounted to P 582,941 and P 595,537 as 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, as disclosed in Note 13. The accumulated depreciation 
amounted to P 8,108,355 and P 7,727,950 as December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, as 
disclosed in Note 13. 
 
The carrying amounts of intangible assets amounted to P 10,044,838 and P 5,921,205 as December 
31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, as disclosed in Note 14.  Accumulated  amortization amounted to  
P 467,718 and P 101,609 as December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, as disclosed in Note 14. 
 
Based on Management’s assessment as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, there is no change in 
estimated useful lives of the assets during those years. Actual results, however, may vary due to 
changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above. 
 
Asset Impairment 
 
The Company performs an impairment review when certain impairment indicators are present.  
 
Determining the fair value of property and equipment, investments and intangible assets, which 
require the determination of future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use and 
ultimate disposition of such assets, requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that 
can materially affect the financial statements. Future events could cause the Company to conclude 
that property and equipment, investments and intangible assets associated with an acquired business 
is impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on the financial 
condition and results of operations. 
 
The preparation of the estimated future cash flows involves significant judgment and estimations. 
While the Company believes that its assumptions are appropriate and reasonable, significant 
changes in the assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and may 
lead to future additional impairment charges under generally accepted accounting principles in the 
Philippines. 
 
No allowance for impairment with respect to its non-financial assets was recognized as of        
December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

 
Deferred Tax Assets 
 
The Company reviews the carrying amounts at each balance sheet date and reduces deferred tax 
assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow 
all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. However, there is no assurance that the Company 
will generate sufficient taxable profit to allow all or part of its deferred tax assets to be utilized. 
 
The Company reported deferred taxes amounted to P 7,960,515 and P 6,279,827 as of December 
31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, as disclosed in Note 15. 
 
Financial Assets and Liabilities 
 
The Company carries some of its financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires extensive 
use of accounting estimates and judgment. In addition, certain liabilities acquired through debt 
exchange and restructuring are required to be carried at fair value at the time of the debt exchange 
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and restructuring. While significant components of fair value measurement were determined using 
verifiable objective evidence, i.e., foreign exchange rates, interest rates, volatility rates, the amount 
of changes in fair value would differ if the Company utilized different valuation methodology. Any 
changes in fair value of these financial assets and liabilities would affect directly the profit or loss and 
equity. 
 
Estimating Allowances for Doubtful Accounts 
 
The Company estimates the allowance for doubtful accounts related to its trade receivables based 
on assessment of specific accounts where the Company has information that certain customers are 
unable to meet their financial obligations. In these cases, judgment used was based on the best 
available facts and circumstances including but not limited to, the length of relationship with the 
customer and the customer’s current credit status based on third party credit reports and known 
market factors. The Company used judgment to record specific reserves for customers against 
amounts due to reduce the expected collectible amounts. These specific reserves are re-evaluated 
and adjusted as additional information received impacts the amounts estimated. 
 
The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if different judgments were 
made or different estimates were utilized. An increase in the allowance for doubtful accounts would 
increase the recognized operating expenses and decrease current assets. 
 
The  Company’s  allowance  for  credit  losses  as  of December 31, 2024 and 2023 amounted to  
P 14,271,197 and P 12,500,144, respectively, as shown in Note 9. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
The Company’s revenue recognition policies require the use of estimates and assumptions that may 
affect the reported amounts of revenues and receivables. Differences between the amounts initially 
recognized and actual settlements are taken up in the accounts upon reconciliation. However, there 
is no assurance that such use of estimates may not result to material adjustments in future periods. 
 
Revenues under a multiple element arrangement were split into separately identifiable components 
and recognized when the related components were delivered in order to reflect the substance of the 
transaction. The fair value of components was determined using verifiable objective evidence 
 
Determining Retirement Obligation 
 
The costs of defined retirement obligation as well as the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions. These include the determination of the discount rates, future salary increases, mortality 
rates and future retirement increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying 
assumptions and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligation are highly sensitive to changes in 
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each end of the reporting period. In determining 
the appropriate discount rate, Management considers the single weighted average discount rate 
which is based on PHP-BVAL zero coupon rates at various tenors as of December 31, 2024 published 
by Bloomberg. Rates for intermediate durations were interpolated. The rates were then weighted by 
the expected benefits payments at those durations to arrive at the single weighted average discount 
rate. 
 
The Company’s retirement obligation as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 amounted to P 3,495,716 
and P 5,836,834, respectively, as shown in Note 22. 
  
Contingencies 
 
Estimates of probable costs for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation 
with outside counsel handling the defense in these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential 
results. The Company currently does not believe these proceedings will have a material adverse 
effect on the financial position. It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be 



PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2024 and 2023 
(In Philippine Peso)                                                                                                                                                                                     

 

Page 28 
 

materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of the Company’s strategies 
relating to these proceedings. 
 
Recoverability of Intangible Asset 
 
During the year, the directors reconsidered the recoverability of the Company’s internally generated 
intangible asset arising from its internally developed computer software and purchased trading rights, 
which is included in the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 amounting 
to P 5,000,000, as disclosed in Note 14. 
 

 
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risks which result from both its operating and 
investing activities. The Company’s risk management is coordinated with the Board of Directors, and 
focuses on actively securing the Company’s short-to-medium term cash flows by minimizing the 
exposure to financial markets. Long-term financial investments are managed to generate lasting 
returns. 
 
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by 
the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor and manage the financial 
risks relating to the operations of the Company through internal risk reports which analyze exposures 
by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk, including currency risk, fair value 
interest rate risk and price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.  
 
The Company seeks to minimize the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to 
hedge risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Company’s policies 
approved by the board of directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, interest 
rate risk, credit risk, the use of financial derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments, and the 
investment of excess liquidity. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed on a 
continuous basis to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s business activities. The 
Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a 
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and 
obligations. 
 
Market Risk Management 
 
Foreign Currency Risk Management 
 
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures 
to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy 
parameters utilizing forward foreign exchange contracts. 
 
The carrying amounts of the Company’s dollar denominated deposits as of December 31, 2024 and 
2023 amounted to P 264,742 and P 681,610, respectively. 
 
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Management determined that the Company’s foreign risk is 
insignificant; however, to mitigate exposure, the Company monitors its dollar deposit. 
 
Interest Rate Risk Management 
 
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk through its short-term investments which are subject to 
30 to 90 days re-pricing intervals. Due to the short duration of short-term investments, management 
believes that the interest rate sensitivity and its effect on the net result for the year and equity are 
insignificant. 
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Credit Risk Management 
 
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in 
financial loss to the Company. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises mainly from transactions 
with its customers. The maximum exposure to credit on these transactions is equal to the carrying 
amount of these financial instruments.  
 
Credit Risk Exposure 
 
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk of the Company as at December 31: 
 

    2024   2023 

Financial assets at FVTPL ₱ 7,353,070 ₱ 5,171,816 

Financial assets at FVOCI  70,000  70,000 

Financial assets at amortized costs: 
 

 
  

Cash and cash equivalents* 
 

689,469,720  634,836,439 

Trade and other receivables** 
 

32,034,180  67,768,009 

Advances to related parties 
 

13,396,904  11,447,002 

Refundable deposit 
 

7,479,143 
 

7,473,491 

  ₱  749,803,017  ₱ 726,766,757 

*excluding cash on hand 
** including the impaired amount 

 
The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining 
sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. 
The Company only transacts with entities that are rated the equivalent of investment grade and above. 
The Company uses other publicly available financial information and its own trading records to rate 
its major customers. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are 
continuously monitored, customers are subject to stringent financial, credit and legal verification 
process, and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved 
counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved 
by the risk management committee annually.  
 
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and 
geographical areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts 
receivable to ensure timely collections. Accordingly, the Company’s exposure to bad debts is not 
significant. 
 
With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Company, which comprise cash 
and cash equivalents and receivable from clearing house, the Company’s exposure to credit risk 
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of 
these instruments. The Company limits its exposure to credit risks by depositing its cash only with 
financial institutions duly evaluated and approved by the BOD. The Company’s exposure on rental 
deposit is minimal since no default in payments was made by the counterparties. 
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The table below shows the credit quality of the Company’s receivables from customers, other 
receivables and related party receivables, but net of residual values of leased assets, if any, as of 
December 31, 2024 and 2023: 
 

2024 
  

Total 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 

Receivables from customers ₱  28,007,889  ₱  -  ₱  -  ₱  28,007,889  

Other receivables  4,026,291   -    -   4,026,291 

Advances to related parties   13,396,904    -    -    13,396,904  

  ₱ 45,431,084 ₱ -   ₱ -   ₱ 45,431,084 

 

2023 
  

Total 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 

Receivables from customers ₱ 28,613,039  ₱  -  ₱  -  ₱ 28,613,039  

Other receivables  39,154,970    -    -   39,154,970  

Advances to related parties  11,447,002    -    -   11,447,002  

  ₱ 79,215,011  ₱ -   ₱ -   ₱ 79,215,011  

 
The credit quality of the financial assets is managed by the Company using the internal credit quality 
ratings. High grade accounts consist of receivables from debtors with good financial condition and 
with relatively low defaults. Financial assets having risks of default but are still collectible are 
considered standard grade accounts. Receivables that are still collectible but require persistent effort 
from the Company to collect are considered substandard grade accounts. 
 
The Company’s receivable from customers related to unsecured and partially secured account is 
actively monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit risk. A substantial portion of the 
Company’s receivable from customers is secured by shares of stocks listed and traded in the PSE 
and lodged with Philippine Depository and Trust Corporation (PDTC) under the account of the 
Company. 
 

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure 
expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on SRC Rule No. 52.1.11.3, as amended thru 
SEC MC 11-2023. 
 
The carrying amount of financial assets recognized in the financial statements, which is net of 
impairment losses, represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk, taking into account 
collateral (net of haircut). 
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The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified either 
individually or by group, and incorporate this information into its credit risk controls. The Company 
trades only with recognized and creditworthy third parties. It is the Company’s policy that all customers 
are subject to credit verification procedures. 
 

In respect of receivable from customers and clearing house and other receivables, the Company is 
not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of 
counterparties having similar characteristics. 
 
The maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of the financial assets 
as shown in the statements of financial position. 
 
None of the Company’s financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements, 
except for cash and cash equivalents as described below: 
 
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 
 
The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the counterparties are 
reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. Included in the cash and cash equivalents 
are cash in banks and short-term placements which are insured by the Philippine Deposit Insurance 
Corporation up to a maximum coverage of P 500,000 for every depositor per banking institution. 
 
(b) Receivables from customers 
 
The Company trades only with recognized and credit worthy third parties. In accordance with RBCA 
requirements, limits are imposed to avoid large exposures to a single client or counterparty, single 
debt issue and single equity issue relative to a particular issuer company and its group of companies. 
As a result, maximum credit risk, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral and netting 
agreements, is limited to the amounts in the statements of financial position. 
 
The Company applies the provision of SRC Rule 52.1.11, as amended thru SEC MC 11-2023 and 
Risk Based Capital Adequacy in measuring credit losses as disclosed in Note 4 Material Accounting 
Policies under Impairment of Financial Assets. 
 

(c) Receivables from clearing house 
 
The credit risk for receivables from clearing house is considered negligible, the amount due were 
collected within the T+2 term of the receivable. Securities Clearing Corporation of the Philippines 
(SCCP) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Philippines Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) and is under the 
regulatory supervision of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). 
 

(d) Other receivables, Due from related parties and Refundable deposit 
 
The Company’s other financial asset has very low credit risk. Management considers “low credit risk” 
when they have a low risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash 
flow obligations in the near term. 
 
Liquidity Risk Management 
 
Liquidity risk is generally defined as the current and prospective risk to earnings or capital arising from 
the Company’s inability to meet its obligation when they come due without recurring unacceptable 
losses or coats. 
 
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has 
established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the 
Company’s short-, medium- and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The 
Company manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows due in 
day-to-day business. 
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The Company maintains cash to meet its liquidity requirements for up to 60-day periods. Excess cash 
are invested in time deposits and short-term placements. Funding for long-term liquidity needs is 
additionally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to sell long 
term financial assets. 
 
Company’s payable to customers is normally settled within three (3) days. Other payables are 
normally settled within one (1) year after reporting date. 
 
The table below shows the financial assets and financial liabilities’ liquidity information which includes 
coupon cash flows categorized based on the expected date on which the asset will be realized and 
the liability will be settled.  
 
Financial Assets: 
 

December 31, 2024 

    
Within 3 
months 

  
3 months 

to 6 
months 

  
6 months 
to 1 year 

  
1 to 3 
years 

  Total 

Financial assets at FVTPL ₱    7,353,070  ₱ -   ₱ -   ₱ -   ₱     7,353,070  

Financial assets at FVOCI           70,000   
-   

 
-   

 
-   

        70,000  

Financial assets at amortized costs:  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Cash and cash equivalents* 
 

689,469,720 
 

-   
 

-   
 

-   
  689,469,720  

Trade and other receivables** 
 883,228   1,114,857    15,764,898    14,271,197   32,034,180 

Advances to related parties 
 13,396,904   

-   
 

-   
 

-   
    13,396,904  

Refundable deposit      7,479,143    -     -     -          7,479,143  

  ₱ 718,652,065 ₱  1,114,857  ₱  15,764,898  ₱  14,271,197  ₱ 749,803,017 

*excluding cash on hand 
**including the impaired amount 

 

December 31, 2023  

    
Within 3 
months 

  
3 months 

to 6 
months 

  
6 months to 

1 year 
  1 to 3 years   Total 

Financial assets at FVTPL ₱ 5,171,816  ₱ -   ₱                   -   ₱  -  ₱ 5,171,816  

Financial assets at FVOCI  
70,000  

 
-   

 
                  -   

 
                  -   

 
70,000  

Financial assets at amortized costs:  
 

 
                    

 
 

 
 

Cash and cash equivalents* 
 

634,836,439  
 

-   
 

                  -   
 

                  -   
 

634,836,439  

Trade and other receivables** 
 

14,398,917  
 

4,603,512  
 

36,265,436  
 

12,500,144  
 

67,768,009  

Advances to related parties 
 

11,447,002  
 

-   
 

                  -   
 

                  -   
 

11,447,002  

Refundable deposit   7,473,491   -                       -                       -     7,473,491 

  ₱ 673,397,665   ₱ 4,603,512  ₱ 36,265,436  ₱ 12,500,144  ₱ 726,766,757 

*excluding cash on hand 
**including the impaired amount 
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Financial Liabilities: 
 

December 31, 2024 

  Within 3 
months 

  
3 months to 

6 months 
  

6 months 
to 1 year 

  
1 to 3 
years 

  Total 

Payable to customers  ₱    649,248,053   ₱ -   ₱                   -   ₱ -   ₱ 649,248,053   

Other payables*   9,120,718  
-   

 
                  -     -     9,120,718 

  ₱ 658,368,771 ₱ -   ₱                   -   ₱ -   ₱ 658,368,771 

*excluding government liabilities and accrued expenses 
 

December 31, 2023  

  Within 3 
months 

  
3 months to 
6 months 

  
6 months to 

1 year 
  

1 to 3 
years 

  Total 

Payable to customers  ₱ 627,435,467  ₱ -   ₱                   -   ₱ -   ₱ 627,435,467  

Other payables*   5,280,259  
 

-   
 

                  -     -     5,280,259  

  ₱ 632,715,726  ₱ -   ₱                   -   ₱ -   ₱ 632,715,726  

*excluding government liabilities and accrued expenses 

 
 
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going 
concerns while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity 
balance. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged in 2024. 
 
The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in Note 17 offset 
by cash and bank balances) and equity of the Company (comprising issued capital, reserves and 
retained earnings, as disclosed in Notes 18 and 20).  
 
The Company’s risk management committee reviews the capital structure of the Company on an 
annual basis. As part of this review, the committee considers the cost of capital and the risks 
associated with each class of capital.  
 
The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows:  
 

    2024   2023 

Debt ₱ 663,216,360 ₱ 640,988,411 

Cash and cash equivalents   689,507,720   634,874,439 

Net debt  (26,291,360)  6,113,972 

Equity   205,062,601   198,945,297 

Net Debt to Equity ratio  -12.82%  3.07% 

 
Debt is defined as long- and short-term borrowings (excluding derivatives and financial guarantee 
contracts), as described in Note 17, while equity includes all capital and reserves of the Company 
that are managed as capital. 
 
Minimum Capital Requirement 
 
The amended IRR of the SRC effective March 6, 2004 includes, among others, revisions in the terms 
and conditions for the registration and subsequent renewal of license applicable to both exchange 
trading participants and non-exchange broker dealers as follows: 
 

 To allow a net capital of P2.5 million of aggregate indebtedness, whichever is higher, for 
broker dealers dealing only in proprietary and not holding securities. 
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 To allow the SEC to set different net capital requirement for those authorized to use the Risk-
Based Capital Adequacy (RBCA) model, and 

 To require unimpaired paid-up capital of P100 million for broker dealers, which are either first 
clearing agency, P10 million plus surety bond for existing broker dealers not engaged in 
market making transactions; and P2.5 million for broker dealers dealing only in proprietary 
shares and not holding securities. 

 
The Company is compliant with the above requirement with an unimpaired paid-up capital amounting 
to P166,703,052 for both years 2024 and 2023. 
 
Risk-Based Capital Adequacy Requirement 
 
On November 11, 2004, the SEC issued Memorandum Circular No. 16 to all broker requiring the 
adoption of the risk-based capital adequacy requirement/ratio (RBCA) for brokers and dealers in 
securities. The Memorandum provided guidelines for the adoption of the RBCA requirement covering 
position or market risk, credit risk and operation risk. Also, the Memorandum requires and RBCA ratio 
of greater than or equal to 1.1. 
 
The RBCA ratio is computed by dividing the Company’s Net Liquid Capital (NLC) to its Total Risk 
Capital Requirements (TRCR). TRCR is the sum of: a) Operational Risk Requirement (ORR); b) Credit 
Risk Requirement which include requirements for Counterparty Risk, Settlement Risk, Large 
Exposure Risk, and Margin lending/Financing Risk; and c) Position or Market Risk Requirements. The 
Company’s RBCA Ratio as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are 291% and  235%, respectively. 
 
Detail computation of the Company’s Risk Based Capital Adequacy Ratio is as follows: 
 

    2024   2023 

Net Liquid Capital ₱ 47,381,122 ₱ 39,213,823 

Divide: Total Risk Capital Requirement 
 

 
 

 

Operational Risk Requirements 13,737,721 
 

14,878,146 

Position Risk Requirements 2,533,714 
 

1,726,365 

Counterparty Risk Requirements 6,343 
 

43,644 

Large Exposure Risk Requirements    -                            -   

Total Risk Capital Requirement ₱ 16,277,778 ₱ 16,648,155 

Risk Based Capital Adequacy Ratio   291%   236% 

 
Net Liquid Capital 
 
The Company is required, at all times, to have and maintain a Net Liquid Capital (NLC) of P 5 million 
or 5% of its Aggregate indebtedness (AI), whichever is higher. 
 
Details of the Company’s NLC as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows: 
 

    2024   2023 

Net Liquid Capital:    
 

Equity Eligible for Net Liquid Capital ₱ 197,102,086 ₱ 191,865,876 

Less: Ineligible Assets 149,720,964 
 152,652,053 

Total Net Liquid Capital ₱  47,381,122  ₱ 39,213,823 
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Required Net Liquid Capital: 
 

 

  

Higher of: 
 

 

  

5% of Aggregated Indebtedness 33,160,818  32,049,421 

Minimum Amount 5,000,000  5,000,000 

Required Net Liquid Capital ₱  33,160,818  ₱ 32,049,545 

 

 

   

Risk Based Capital Excess ₱ 14,220,304 ₱          7,164,402  

 
 
Total Risk Capital Requirement 
 
a) Operational Risk Requirements (ORR)  
 
Operational risk requirement is the exposure associated with commencing and remaining arising 
separately from exposure by other risk requirements. It is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or 
failed internal processes, people and system which include, among others, risk or fraud, operational 
or settlement failure and shortage of liquid resources, or from external events. 
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The Company’s Core Equity should, at all times, be greater than its Operational Risk Requirement. 
Core Equity is the sum of all paid-up common stock, common stock dividends distributable, additional 
paid-in-capital, surplus reserves excluding revaluation reserves or appraisal capital, and opening 
retained earnings adjusted for all current year movement. Core Equity should exclude treasury shares 
and unbooked valuation reserves and other capital adjustments and be always greater than its 
Operational Risk Requirement. 
 
The Company has no operational risk exposure since it has a Core Equity of P198,145,703 and 
P196,418,018 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.   
 
b) Position/Price Risk Requirement (PRR) 
 
The Company is exposed to equity security price risk because of investments held and classified in 
the statements of financial position as fair value through profit and loss. The Company is not exposed 
to commodity price risk. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the 
Company diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set 
by the management. 
 
The computation of position risk requirement as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows: 
 

December 31, 2024 
      

Particulars   
Total Market 

Value of 
Instrument 

  
Position 

Risk Factors 
  PRR 

Equities inside the PSEi ₱  610,395  
 

25% ₱  152,599  

Other equities outside the PSEi   6,742,675  
 

35%   2,359,936  

FX Position   264,742  
 

8%   21,179  

Total  ₱  7,617,812      ₱  2,533,714  
       

December 31, 2023 
      

Particulars   
Total Market 

Value of 
Instrument 

  
Position Risk 

Factors 
  PRR 

Equities inside the PSEi ₱ 1,326,995  
 

25% ₱             331,749  

Other equities outside the PSEi  3,844,820  
 

35%           1,345,687  

FX Position  611,610  
 

8%                48,929  

Total  ₱ 5,783,425      ₱          1,726,365         

 
c) Counterparty Risk Exposure 

 
There were no unsettles customer trades which arise from customer-to-broker agency relationship. 
A counterparty exposure of this kind occurs when (a) the customer poses the possible risk of failing 
to deliver securities on a sell contract or (b) the customer poses the possible risk of failing to pay 
cash on a purchase buy contract. 
 
There were also no unsettled principal trades which arise from broker-to-broker or broker-to-
exchange/clearing agency relationship/counterparty exposure. A counterparty exposure of this kind 
occurs when (a) the broker dealer poses the possibility of failing to receive cash from its counterparty 
on a sell contract or (b) the broker dealer poses the possibility of failing to receive the securities from 
its counterparty on a buy contract. 
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Counterparty risk exposure arising from debt/loans, contra losses and other amounts due resulting 
from amount unpaid on their agreed due date amounted to P 6,343 and P 43,644  for the years ended 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
 
d) Large Exposure Risk 

 

Large exposure risk is the risk to which a broker dealer is exposed whether by way of: (a) A 
proportionally large amount of exposure to a particular counterparty; (b) a proportionally large 
exposure to a single issuer of debt, and; (c) proportionally large exposure to a single equity security 
issuer group. 
 
The Company does not have any exposure to a single equity relative to a particular issuer company 
and its group of companies in which did not exceed the minimum large exposure limit of 30% of its 
Core Equity of P 198,145,703. 
 
 
7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statements of cash 
flows can be reconciled to the related items in the statements of financial position as follows: 
 

    2024   2023 

Cash in banks ₱  373,665,703  ₱ 464,218,654  

Short-term placements   315,804,017   170,617,785  

Cash on hand   38,000   38,000  

  ₱  689,507,720  ₱ 634,874,439  

 
Cash in banks consist of savings, current, or time deposits. 
 
Cash in bank generally earns interest at rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents 
pertains to time deposits that are mode for varying period of up to three months depending on the 
Company’s immediate cash requirements and earns interest at the prevailing banks interest rates. 
Interest income recognize in the statements of comprehensive income amounted to P 14,290,419 
and P 8,337,362 in 2024 and 2023, respectively, as disclosed in Note 26. 
 
As of December 31, 2024, included in cash in bank is USD 4,563 translated to Philippine Peso 
amounting to P 264,742 at an exchange rate of P 58.01 to a USD as of December 31, 2024, and 
USD 12,268 translated to Philippine Peso amounting to P 681,610 at an exchange rate of P 55.56   
to a USD as of December 31, 2023. Unrealized gain on USD-denominated bank deposit amounts 
to P 29,246 and P 5,573 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, as 
disclosed in Note 27. 
 

    2024   2023 

United States dollar                                                                 $ 4,563 $ 12,268 

Peso equivalent ₱ 264,742 ₱ 681,610 

     

In compliance with Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 49.2-1, the Company maintains a special 
reserve bank account with Banco de Oro Unibank, Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation, China 
Bank, Union bank, EastWest Bank and Security Bank amounting to P643,186,813 and 
P592,881,074 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, for the exclusive benefit of its 
customers. 
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8. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 
 
The Company’s investments at fair value through profit or loss are as follows: 
 

   2024  2023 

Equities in Philippine Stock Exchange Index (PSEi) ₱  610,395  ₱ 1,326,996 

Other equities outside the PSEi   6,742,675   3,844,820 

  ₱  7,353,070  ₱ 5,171,816 

 
The Company’s net trading gain in as follows: 
 

 2024 2023 

 Net Realized trading gains ₱ 1,084,655 ₱ 1,294,688 

 Unrealized trading gains (losses)              (962,359) 316,001 

   Net Trading Gains (Note 26) ₱               122,296  ₱ 1,610,689 

 
The movement in the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is summarized below: 
 

    2024  2023 

Cost:     

Balance at beginning of the year ₱  5,171,816  ₱ 9,882,461 

Additions   2,421,163,706   2,419,747,917 

Disposals   (2,415,778,175)  (2,424,967,877) 

End   10,557,347   4,662,501 

Add (Less):  
 

  

Fair value adjustments   3,204,277   509,315 

Securities at Fair Values ₱  7,353,070  ₱         5,171,816  

 
Financial assets at FVTPL represent equity securities held for trading. The listed securities above 
represent opportunities for return through dividend income and trading gains. The sources of the fair 
value of these securities are the quoted market price at the PSEi as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 
or on the last trading day of each year. 
 
Dividends earned on these investments amount to P 644,450 and P 249,245 for the years ended 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, as disclosed in Note 26. 

 
 
9. TRADES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES – NET 
 

    2024  2023 

Trade receivables ₱  28,007,889  ₱ 28,613,039 

Receivable from clearing houses                                     -    25,202,232 

Other receivables  4,026,291  13,952,738 

    32,034,180  67,768,009 

Total Allowance for credit losses    (14,271,197)  (12,500,144) 
 ₱ 17,762,983 ₱ 55,267,865 

 
Receivables from customers are due within two (2) trading days after the consummation of the 
transactions. Receivables from customer’s margin accounts are non-interest bearing. 
 
None of the Company’s receivables from customers have been pledged as collateral to any loan. 
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Other receivables consist of receivables from employees and agents, which are deductible from 
salaries and third parties which is collectible within 12 months. 
 
All of the Company’s receivables from customers have been reviewed for indicators of impairment. 
Certain receivables from customers were found to be impaired and provisions have been recorded 
accordingly. Allowance for credit losses on receivables from customers is computed using the 
formula provided by the SRC Rule No. 52.1.11, as amended thru SEC MC 11-2023. 

 
The movements in the allowance for credit losses on receivables are as follows 
 

 2024 2023 

 Beginning Balance ₱  12,500,144  ₱ 6,442,657 

 Additional provision (Note 25)                                      1,771,053  6,057,487 

   Ending Balance ₱  14,271,197  ₱ 12,500,144 

 
The security valuation of the debit balances of customers’ accounts are presented below: 

 

 2024 2023 

   Money Balance   

Security 

Valuation - Long   

Money 

Balance   

Security 

Valuation - Long 

Fully secured accounts   

More than 250% ₱ 10,373,627 ₱ 712,100,465 ₱ 11,356,472 ₱ 899,546,279 

Between 200% to 250% 1,345,287 2,878,916 2,070,521 4,650,577 

Between 150% to 200% 80,836 139,849 4,987 9,059 

Between 100% to 150% 58,926 66,680 39,092 42,304 

Sub total 11,858,676  715,185,911 13,471,072 904,248,219 

Partially secured 

accounts 
      

Below 100%          15,719,357             3,064,609  14,970,909 3,953,964 

Unsecured accounts               429,855                         -   171,058 - 

Sub total          16,149,213             3,064,609  15,141,967 3,953,964

Allowance for credit 

losses 
       (14,271,197)                        -   (12,500,14) - 

Total ₱          13,736,692  ₱ 718,250,520 ₱ 16,112,895 ₱ 908,202,183 

 
As of December 31,2024 and 2023, none of the receivables were pledged as collateral to secure the 
Company’s liabilities.  
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10. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
 

This account consists of the following: 
 

    2024   2023 

Prior year’s excess credits ₱ 5,000,553 ₱ 5,143,157 

Prepaid expenses  1,480,610  2,756,093 

Deferred input taxes-current  -    6,033 
 ₱ 6,481,163 ₱ 7,905,283 

 
Prepayments are credited against income tax liability at the end of the taxable year. Any excess of 
prepayments, if any are either refunded, carried over to the taxable year, or converted to tax credit 
certificates. Excess credits over from the immediately preceedings.to the current taxable year are 
classified separately as “prior year’s excess credits”. 
 
Prepaid expenses consist of rentals, insurance and other expenses paid in advances which are 
expected to be consumed within 12 months. 
 
Input taxes are the 12% valued added tax (VAT) on purchase goods or services in the course of its 
trade or business. At the end of the year, input tax can be applied against output tax. 
 
Current deferred input taxes represent the unamortized portion of input taxes on capital goods 
exceeding ₱1 million that should  be claimed on a staggered basis over 60 months or the useful life 
of the asset whichever is shorter, expected to be realized within 12 months. 

 
 

11. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 

As of December 31,2024 and 2023, this account both amounted to ₱70,000. 
 
The investment has no ready market value and therefore, no gains or losses were recognized during 
2024 and 2023. 
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12. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY 
 

The Company’s investment in subsidiary pertains to the common shares of stocks of PFI Holdings 
and Management Corp. (PFIHMC) and Philment Collectibles and Antiques Inc. (PCAI), holding 
companies incorporated in the Philippines. The Company owns 92.92% and 54.99% of PFIHMC and 
PCAI common shares, respectively. 
 
The investment in subsidiary was acquired with an acquisition cost amounting to P 96,550,750 on 
June 9, 2020 and P 2,749,600 on August 4, 2023 of PFIHMC and PCAI common shares, respectively. 
  

2024 

Subsidiary Principal Activity 
Ownership 

Interest  
Shares Amount 

PFIHMC 
Investment holdings 

management 
92.92% 104,200,000 ₱104,200,000 

PCAI Holding company 54.99% 27,496 2,749,600 

    ₱106,949,600 

 
 

2023 

Subsidiary Principal Activity 
Ownership 

Interest  
Shares Amount 

PFIHMC 
Investment holdings 

management 
92.92% 104,200,000 ₱104,200,000 

 
Movements of the investment in subsidiaries are as follows 
 

 2024 2023 

 At January 1 ₱ 104,200,000 ₱ 104,200,000 

 Shares subscription (reversal of allowance)  2,749,600  - 

   At December 31 ₱        106,949,600  ₱ 104,200,000 

 
The summarized financial information of PFIHMC is as follows: 
 

            2024  2023 

Current assets ₱  6,875,494  ₱ 12,781,804 

Non-current assets   117,359,500   118,322,400 

Total assets   124,234,994   131,104,204 

     

Current liabilities   67,424   5,264,337 

Non-current liabilities   2,604,808   2,604,808 

Share capital   114,200,400   114,200,400 

Accumulated profit    7,362,362   9,034,659 

Total liabilities and equity ₱  124,234,994  ₱ 131,104,204 
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The summarized financial information of PCAI is as follows: 
 

            2024  2023 

Current assets ₱  4,923,429  ₱ 4,896,468 

Non-current assets   -   
 

 -   

Total assets   4,923,429    4,896,468  

     

Current liabilities   16,619  
 

 -   

Non-current liabilities   -   
 

 -   

Share capital   5,000,000    5,000,000  

Accumulated profit    (93,190)   (103,532) 

Total liabilities and equity ₱  4,923,429  ₱  4,896,468  
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS – NET 
 
The movement of the account are summarized below as of December 31, 2024 and 2023: 
 

   Trading right  
Computer 
software 

 Total 

Cost:       

January 1, 2023 ₱ 5,000,000 ₱ 626,760 ₱ 5,626,760 

Additions  -  396,054  396,054 

December 31, 2023  5,000,000  1,022,814  6,022,814 

Additions  -   4,489,742    4,489,742  

December 31, 2024 ₱ 5,000,000 ₱  5,512,556  ₱  10,512,556  
       

Accumulated amortization:       

January 1, 2023 ₱ - ₱ 10,763 ₱ 10,763 

Amortization (Note 25)  -  90,846  90,846 

December 31, 2023  -  101,609  101,609 

Amortization (Note 25)  -   366,109    366,109  

December 31, 2024 ₱ - ₱  467,718  ₱  467,718  
       

Net book value:       

December 31 2023 ₱ 5,000,000 ₱  921,205  ₱  5,921,205  

December 31, 2024 ₱ 5,000,000 ₱        5,044,838  ₱      10,044,838  

 
Trading rights represent the company’s privilege in trading securities in the Philippines Stock 
Exchange (PSE) floor. In compliance with Section 8, Article III of the Amended by Laws of the 
Exchange, the Company’s trading right (previously the exchange membership seat) is pledged at its 
full value to the PSE to secure the payment of all the debts due to the Exchange and to other trading 
participants of the Exchange arising out of or in connection with the present or future contracts relating 
to securities  and compliance in with Section 7, Article II of the rules Governing Trading Rights and 
Trading Participants, to secure the payment of all debts and claims due to the clients of the company, 
the Government, the Exchange and the other trading participant of the Exchange and to the Securities 
Clearing Corporation of the Philippines(SCCP).  
  
As of December 31,2024 and 2023, there are no indication of any impairment loss on the carrying 
amount of intangible assets since its market value approximate its carrying amount. 
 
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company has no intangible assets pledged as security for 
liability and has no amounting contractual commitments to acquire certain intangible assets. 
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15. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS  
 

The components of the Company’s deferred tax asset and its respective movement is as follows: 
 

    
At 

January 1, 
2023 

 

Charge 
(credit) to 

profit or loss 
for the year 

 
At 

December 
31, 2023 

 

Charge 
(credit) to 

profit or loss 
for the year 

 
At 

December 
31, 2024 

Tax effects of:            

NOLCO ₱ 894,127 ₱ (7,374) ₱ 886,753 ₱  958,174  ₱ 1,844,927  

Excess MCIT  
-  309,577  309,577   380,030    689,607  

Retirement benefits 
obligations  

1,091,639  183,155  1,274,794   (253,165)  1,021,629  

Unrealized loss (gain) on 
FVTPL  

1,102,804  (416,060)  686,744   161,590    848,334  

Allowance for expected 
credit loss  

1,610,663  1,514,372  3,125,035   442,763   3,567,798  

Unrealized forex loss (gain)    (1,056)  (2,020)  (3,076)   (8,704)   (11,781) 

Total ₱ 4,698,177 ₱ 1,581,650 ₱ 6,279,827 ₱  1,680,688  ₱ 7,960,515  

 
 
16. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
 
This account consists of the following: 

 

   2024   2023 

Refundable deposits ₱ 7,479,143 ₱ 7,473,491 

Deferred input tax 681,977 727,243 

Creditable withholding tax 2,509                        -

Other non-current assets 5,598 -

₱ 8,169,227 ₱ 8,200,734 

 
Refundable deposits include non-interest-bearing deposits made on lease usually refundable after 
the end of contract or services less any charges. 
 
The Company, as a clearing member, is required to pay monthly contributions to the CTGF 
maintained by the SCCP for an amount 1/500 of 1% applied to the Clearing Member’s total monthly 
turnover value less block sales and cross transactions of the same flag. On March 13,2018, the SEC 
resolved SCCP’s proposed amendments to SCCP Rule 5.2, making the Clearing Member’s 
contribution to the CTGF refundable upon cessation of their business and/or termination of their 
membership with SCCP, provided that all liabilities owing to SCCP at the time of termination, whether 
actual or contingent, shall have been satisfied or paid in full. The share of the Company in the seed 
money contributed by the Philippines Stock Exchange amounted P5,503,871 as of 2024 and 2023, 
which was included under refundable deposit account. 
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17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
 
The account consists of the following: 
 

    2024   2023 

Trade payables ₱ 649,248,053 ₱ 627,435,467 

Other payables  9,120,718  5,280,259 

Government and statutory payables  820,913  1,936,221 

Accrued expenses  530,959  499,630 

  ₱ 659,720,644 ₱    635,151,577  

 
Trade payables are payable to customer for the purchase of securities and other trade-related 
transactions. These are unsecured obligations, non-interest bearing and have no specific credit 
terms. 
 
Accrued expenses payable consists of accruals for operating expenses. These expenses are 
unsecured are non-interest bearing and usually settled within 12 months. 
 
Other payables are composed of transfer and transaction fees payables, central depository and 
clearing   house fee payable, commission payable and other obligations to third parties which are 
unsecured, non-interest bearing and to be paid within 12 months. 
 
The Company trade payables and their security valuation follows. 

 

 2024 2023 

  Credit balance   
Security Valuation 

– Long 
  Credit balance   

Security 

Valuation - Long 

With money balance ₱             649,248,053   ₱          6,714,689,578 ₱          627,435,467   ₱    5,447,078,756 

Without money balance                               -             1,322,486,322                            -       1,293,709,852 

  ₱             649,248,053    ₱          8,037,175,900 ₱          627,435,467   ₱    6,740,788,608 

 
The breakdown of trade payables is as follows: 

 

    2024   2023 

Customers ₱ 646,922,594 ₱ 623,453,625 

Non-customers (such as general partners and principal 

officers)  
2,325,459  3,981,842 

  ₱ 649,248,053 ₱ 627,435,467 
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18. CAPITAL STOCK 
 
As of December 31, this account consists of the following: 
 

   2024   2023 

Authorized capital stock (600,000,000 shares@ P 1 

par value) ₱ 600,000,000 ₱ 600,000,000 

Subscribed and paid capital stock (166,703,052) 

shares @P 1 par value) ₱ 166,703,052 ₱ 166,703,052 

     

There were no additional issuances of shares in 2024 and 2023. 
 
In 2024 and 2023, the Company has six (6) stockholders owning 100 or more shares each of the 
Company’s capital stock. 
 
 
19. EARNINGS PER SHARE 
 
Basic loss per share amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to ordinary 
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number  of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the year. 
 
The financial information pertinent to the derivation of the basic loss per share for the years ended 
2024 and 2023 are as follows. 
 

    2024  2023 

Income attributable to ordinary shares ₱ 4,254,522 ₱ 1,727,686 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding used 

for computation of basic loss per share 
166,703,052 166,703,052 

Basic earnings per share ₱ 0.0255 ₱ 0.0104 

 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income for the year attributable to ordinary 
equity holders of the Company by the number of ordinary shares outstanding for the years ended 
December 31, 2024 and 2023. 
 
 
20. ACCUMULATED PROFITS 
 
This account consists of cumulative balance of periodic earnings and prior period adjustments, if any.  
As of December, the account consists of the following: 
 

    2024   2023 

Net income  ₱  4,254,522  ₱ 1,727,686 
Less: Appropriation of retained earnings per 
SRC Rule 49.1  

 (425,452) 
 

(172,769) 

Net income actual realized ₱  3,829,070  ₱ 1,554,917 
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Accumulated profits, beginning ₱  24,904,731  ₱ 23,349,814 
Net income    4,254,522   1,727,686 
Less: Appropriation of retained earnings per 
SRC Rule 49.1  

 (425,452) 
 

(172,769) 

Accumulated profits, as adjusted ending     28,733,801    24,904,731 
Add: Appropriation reserves   6,963,372   6,537,920 

Total ₱  35,697,173  ₱ 31,442,651 

 
Appropriation for Reserve Fund 
 
As per SRC Rule 49.1(B) of the SEC Memorandum Circular No. 16 Series of 2004 on November 11, 
2004, every Broker Dealer shall annually appropriate a certain minimum percentage of its audited 
profit after tax and transfer the same to the Appropriated Retained Earnings. Appropriation shall be 
30%, 20% and 10% of profit after tax with unimpaired paid-up capital of P10 million to P30 million to 
P50 million, and above P50 million, respectively.  
 
The Company has appropriated 10% of the profit after tax amounting to P 425,452 and P 172,769 in 
2024 and 2023, respectively. 
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22. RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATION 
 
The Company has not established plan. However, it is required to pay qualified employees retirement 
benefits under Republic Act No. 7641. Based on DOLE Circular relative to R.A 7641. The benefits 
considered in the valuation is the minimum retirement benefit provided under Republic Act No.7641. 
Based on the DOLE Circular relative to R.A 7641 issued on January 7,1993, given the Company 
formula for converting monthly salary to daily salary, the minimum benefit is approximately eighty-
five percent (85%) of final monthly salary per year of service. 
 
Actuarial valuations are made every year to update the retirement benefit cost. All amounts presented 
below are based on the actuarial valuations report obtained from an independent actuary on April 4, 
2025 and April 12, 2023. 
 
The unfunded status and amounts recognized under retirement benefits liability in the statements of 
financial position for the retirement as of December 31,2024 and 2023 are as follows: 
 

    2024   2023 

Present value of benefit obligation ₱ 3,495,716 ₱ 5,836,834  

Fair value of plan asset                        -                         -   

Surplus  3,495,716  5,836,834  

Effects of asset ceiling                      -                        -   

Liability to be recognized  ₱ 3,495,716 ₱  5,836,834  

 
 
Retirement expense amounted to P 850,125 and P 732,620 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively, as disclosed in note 25. 
 

    2024   2023 

Current service cost ₱         521,108  ₱ 434,393 

Net interest cost          329,017   298,227 

Net plan cost to be recognized on profit on loss  ₱         850,125   ₱ 732,620 

  
 

  

Actuarial gain (loss)  2,328,478  (822,903) 

Changes in the effect of asset ceiling   -    - 

Re-measurement on plan assets   -    - 

Deferred tax asset  (465,696)  - 

Total gain (loss) to be recognized on other 
comprehensive 

  1,862,782 
  

(822,903) 

Net plan cost to be recognized on total comprehensive 
income 

₱ 1,012,657 ₱ 1,166,887 

 
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows 
 

    2024  2023 

At the beginning of the year ₱ 5,836,834 ₱ 4,669,947 

Interest cost   329,017   298,227 

Current service cost   521,108   434,393 

Benefits paid  (862,765)  (388,636) 

Actuarial loss    (2,328,478)  822,903 

At end of the year ₱ 3,495,716 ₱ 5,836,834 
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Changes in the amount of actuarial gains (loss) on retirement benefit obligations are as follows: 
 

    2024   2023 

Balance at January 1 ₱  799,594  ₱      1,622,497  
Total gain (loss) to be recognized on other 
comprehensive  

 1,862,782  
 

      (822,903) 

Balance at December 31 ₱  2,662,376  ₱         799,594  

 
The principal assumptions used in determining retirement benefits are as follows: 
 

    2024   2023 

Discount rate  6.13%  6.10% 

Salary increase rate  5.00%  5.00% 

 
Breakdown of actuarial loss/ (gain) are as follows: 
 

    2024   2023 

Changes in financial assumption ₱  (2,316,759) ₱ 711,243 

Experience   (11,719)  111,660 

Actuarial loss (gain) ₱  (2,328,478) ₱ 822,903 

 
The movements in net liability/(asset) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows: 
 

    2024   2023 

Asset/(Liability), beginning ₱    (5,836,834) ₱  (4,669,947) 

Amount to be recognized in profit or loss       (850,125)   (732,620) 

Benefits paid  862,765   388,636  

Amount to be recognized in other comprehensive         
income  

2,328,478 
 

 (822,903) 

Asset(liability), ending ₱ (3,495,716) ₱  (5,836,834) 

 
 Maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments is shown below: 
 

PLAN YEAR 2024 2023 

  1 year and less ₱  -  ₱  886,240  

  More than 1 year to 5 years ₱  -  ₱  1,311,845  

  More than 5 years to 10 years ₱  529,351  ₱  -   

  Beyond 10 years ₱  18,626,919  ₱  31,433,947  

 
Sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows: 
 

    2024   2023 

Discount rate    
 

Increase in assumption by 1% ₱  2,941,080  ₱ 5,235,985  

Decrease in assumption by 1%   3,816,964   6,542,278  

Salary Increase Rate    
 

Increase in assumption by 1% ₱ 3,723,808 P 6,571,029 

Decrease in assumption by 1%  3,019,372  5,202,118 

Turnover Rate    
 

Increase in assumption by 1.2% ₱ 3,095,013 P 5,433,462 

Decrease in assumption by .2%  3,630,776  6,312,289 
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23. REVENUES 
 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the account consists of commission revenue 
amounting to P32,743,162 and P26,625,712, respectively. 
 
 
24. DIRECT COST  
 
The account consists of: 
 

    2024   2023 

Salaries and employee benefits ₱ 7,056,308 ₱ 11,950,320 

Commission expense  6,657,337  7,258,267 

Stock exchange dues and fees  2,436,464  66,140 

Central depository fees  698,160  878,121 

 ₱    16,848,269  ₱ 20,152,848 

 
 
25. OPERATING EXPENSES 
 
The account consists of: 
 

    2024   2023 

Salaries and employee benefits ₱  5,510,458  ₱  7,614,095  

Rentals (Note 29)   3,420,903    3,749,373  

Dues and subscriptions   2,544,975    952,355  

Transportation, meal and travel   2,160,386    1,096,773  

Postage and telecommunications   2,021,286    773,461  

Marketing and promotions   1,923,672    1,070,738  

Provision for credit losses (Note 9)   1,771,053    6,057,487  

Representation and entertainment   1,244,407    300,749  

Insurance   1,089,887    997,759  

Retirement expense (Note 23)   850,125    732,620  

SSS, PHIC, HDMF contributions   692,516    710,217  

Utilities   550,078    271,342  

Repairs and maintenance   463,934    384,680  

Office supplies   427,983    278,322  

Depreciation (Note13)   380,405    333,355  

Amortization (Note 14)   366,109    90,846  

Taxes and licenses   223,239    377,437  

Professional fee   195,580    493,535  

Bank charges   62,526    25,699  

Trainings and seminars   27,735    2,962  

Miscellaneous   1,515,486    819,175  

  ₱  27,442,743  ₱  27,132,980  
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26. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 

 
The account consists of: 

 

    2024   2023 

Interest income form bank accounts ₱ 14,290,419  ₱  8,337,362  

Net realized gains (Note 8)   1,084,655    1,294,688  

Interest income from margin accounts   905,961    2,195,843  

Dividend income   644,450    249,245  

Rental revenue   451,429    150,000  

Unrealized gain (loss) on FVTPL (Note 8)   (962,359)   316,001  

  ₱ 16,414,555  ₱  12,543,139  

 
Interest income consist of interest earned from local and foreign bank deposits that are subject 
to 20% and 15% final tax, respectively (see Note 28) 
 
 
27. OTHER INCOME – NET 

 
The account consists of: 
 

    2024   2023 

Unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) ₱           29,246  ₱             5,573  

Project summit                      -         9,600,000  

Miscellaneous income          342,967           744,155  

 ₱  372,213  ₱ 10,349,728  

 
Project Summit is a collaborative software development initiative between our Company and Oxford 
Distributions, Inc. The project aims to design, develop, and deploy a scalable, user-friendly software 
solution to enhance operational efficiencies and streamline business processes. 
 
 
28. INCOME TAXES 

 
Components of income tax expense are as follows: 
 

    2024   2023 

Current tax expense     

   RCIT @ 25% ₱  1,309,729  ₱ 558,187 

     

Deferred tax expense:     

   Origination and reversal of temporary differences   (3,076,081)  (1,830,260) 

   Final tax   2,750,748   1,777,138 

 ₱  984,396  ₱ 505,065 

 
The CREATE Act, which seeks to reduce the Corporate Income Tax Rates and to rationalize 
the current fiscal incentives by making it timebound, targeted and performance-based, was 
passed into law on March 26, 2022. The following are the key changes to the Philippine tax 
law pursuant to the CREATE Act which have an impact to the Company: 

 Effective July 1, 2020, regular corporate income tax (RCIT) rate is reduced from 30% 
to 25% for domestic and resident foreign corporations. For domestic corporations with 
net taxable income not exceeding P5 million and with total assets not exceeding P100 
million (excluding land on which the business entity’s office, plant and equipment are 
situated) during the taxable year, the RCIT rate is reduced to 20%.  
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 Minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) rate reduced from 2% to 1% of gross income 
effective July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2023. 

 The Bureau of Internal Revenue released Revenue Regulation Memorandum Circular No. 
69-2023 which includes a directive to revert the MCIT rate to 2% starting July 1, 2023. 

 
A numerical reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied 
by the tax rate in 2024 and 2023 follows: 
 

    2024   2023 

Accounting profit ₱  5,238,918  ₱ 2,232,751 

Income tax at statutory rate 25%   1,309,729   558,187 

Non-deductible expenses  657,637          316,392  

Interest income subjected to final tax  (3,572,605)   (2,084,341) 

Dividend income subjected to final tax  (161,113)   (62,311) 

Provision for final tax  2,750,748       1,777,138  

  ₱  984,396  ₱ 505,065   

 
 
Details of NOLCO are as follows: 
 

Year 
Incurred 

  Amount   
Applied 
Previous 

Year 
  

Applied 
Current 

Year 
  Expired   Unapplied 

Expiry 
Date 

2022 ₱ 3,576,509  ₱ 29,492 ₱           -   ₱           -   ₱ 3,547,017  2025 

2024  3,832,694  -  -  -  3,832,694 2027 

  ₱ 7,409,203 ₱ 29,492   ₱           -   ₱           -   ₱ 7,379,711   

 
 
Details of Company’s MCIT which can be claimed as tax credits against regular income tax 
are as follows: 
 

Year 
Incurred 

  Amount   
Applied 
Previous 

Year 
  

Applied 
Current 

Year 
  Expired   Unapplied 

Expiry 
Date 

2022 ₱ 220,765  ₱              -   ₱           -   ₱           -   ₱ 220,765  2025 

2023  309,577                -              -              -    309,577 2026 

2024    380,030               -              -              -      380,030 2027 

  ₱   910,372 ₱              -   ₱           -   ₱           -   ₱   910,372   

 
The Company is subject to Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) which is computed at 2.0% and 
1.5% in 2024 and 2023, respectively, of gross income, as defined under tax regulations, or RCIT, 
whichever is higher. In 2024 and 2023, the Company has no income tax due. The Company did not 
recognize DTA for 2022 MCIT. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2024 and 2023 
(In Philippine Peso)                                                                                                                                                                                     

 

Page 58 
 

29. OPERATING LEASE AGREEMENTS 
 
The Company as Lessee 
 
Operating leases relate to leases of office space with lease terms of 1 year. Operating lease payments 
represent rentals payable by the Company. Leases are negotiated for an average term of 1 year. The 
Company has elected not to recognize a lease liability for short term leases (leases of expected term 
12 months or less). Payments made under such lease are expenses on a straight-line basis. 
An analysis of the rent expense recognized by the Company is as follows: 
 

    2024   2023 

Minimum lease payments (Note 25) ₱  3,420,903  ₱ 3,749,373  

Contingent rentals   -    - 

Sub lease payments   -    -  

  ₱  3,420,903  ₱ 3,749,373  

 
At reporting date, the Company had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments 
under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows: 
 

    2024   2023 

Not later than one year ₱ 3,392,773 ₱ 3,936,842 

Later than one year but not later than five years   -    - 

Later than five years   -    - 

  ₱ 3,392,773 ₱ 3,936,842 

 
 
30. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
These  financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 
May 21, 2025. 
 
The Management is still empowered to make amendments on the financial statements even after the 
date of issue. 
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Supplementary information required by Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010 
 
Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 21-2002 prescribing additional procedural and/or documentary 
requirements in connection with the preparation and submission of financial statements 
accompanying income tax returns was amended under RR 15-2010. The amendment that became 
effective on December 28, 2010 requires the inclusion in the notes to financial statements, information 
on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the year in addition to what is required under 
the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Accounting Standards and such other standards and/or 
conventions.  
 
Below are the additional information required by RR 15 – 2010. This information is presented for 
purposes of filing with the BIR and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
 
I. Output VAT – 2550M 
 

Details on the Company’s VAT output tax declared during the year are as follows: 
 

     Vatable    Sales to Govt.   Zero-rated   Total 

Revenue P 37,558,413 P - P - P 37,558,413 

  12%  12%  0%  12% 

Output VAT  P 4,507,010 P - P - P 4,507,010 

 
 
II. Input VAT 
 

An analysis of the Company’s VAT input tax claimed during the year is as follows: 
 

    2024 

Balance, January 1 P - 

Current year’s domestic purchases/payments for:   
Domestic purchases other than capital goods  59,851 

Domestic purchases of services  1,276,299 

Total available input tax P 1,336,150 

Input tax applied/used  (1,336,150) 

Balance, December 31 P - 

 
 
III. Withholding Taxes 
 

An analysis of the withholding taxes paid or accrued in 2024 are as follows: 
 

    2024 

Stock transfer tax   P 32,195,597 

Expanded withholding taxes    1,022,133 

Withholding tax on compensation and benefits    602,812 

   P 33,820,542 
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IV. Taxes and licenses 
 

An analysis on the Company’s taxes and licenses and permit fees paid or accrued in 2024 
are as follows: 
 

    2024 

Business permits   P 223,239 

 
 

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR TAXPAYERS WITH RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
UNDER RR 34 – 2020 

Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 34-2020 prescribes the Guidelines and Procedures for the 
Submission of BIR Form No. 1709, Transfer Pricing Documentation (TPD) and other Supporting 
Documents, Amending for this Purpose the Pertinent Provisions of Revenue Regulations (RR) Nos. 
19-2020 and 21-2002, as amended by RR No. 15-2010. 
 
The Company is not covered by the requirements and procedures for related party transactions 
provided under this RR. 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 
 
Stockholders and Board of Directors  

PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC. 
G/F Unit EC-05B East Tower, PSE Center 
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City 
 
 
We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, 

INC. (the “Company”), as at and for the year ended December 31, 2024, on which we have rendered the attached report dated 

May 21, 2025. Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The 

accompanying supplementary schedules as at December 31, 2024 is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. 

 

These schedules are presented for the purposes of complying with Securities Regulation Code and Revised Securities Regulation 

Code Rule 68 and are not part of the basic financial statements. These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures 

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, including comparing such information directly to the underlying accounting 

and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. In our opinion, the 

schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

 

UHY M.L. AGUIRRE & CO., CPAs 
Tax Identification No. 006-533-775  
BOA Accreditation No. 4511 
June 27, 2024 valid until May 14, 2027 
BIR Accreditation No.08-005582-000-2024 
October 16, 2024 valid until October 15, 2027 
BSP Accreditation No. 4511-BSP  
Valid for Financial Audit Report for the Year 2024 
NEA Accreditation No. 2023-10-00095 
December 11, 2023 valid until December 10, 2026 
IC Accreditation No. 4511-IC 
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements 
CDA CEA No. 038-AF 
Valid from June 14, 2024 to June 13, 2029 

       
      
      By: 
 
  
 RUEL R. FACUNDO 
 Partner 

CPA Certificate No. 097806 
PRC ID Expiry Date April 5, 2026 
BOA Accreditation No. 4511/P-002 
June 27, 2024 valid until May 14, 2027 
BSP Accreditation No. 978060-BSP 
Valid for Financial Audit Report For the Years 2023,                    
2024, 2025, 2026 and 2027 
Tax Identification No. 157-796-581 
BIR Accreditation No. 05-008023-001-2025 
March 6, 2025, valid until March 5, 2028 
PTR No. 10472000 
Issued on January 7, 2025 
Makati City 

 

 
 

May 21, 2025 

Makati City, Philippines 

 



SCHEDULE I

PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC.

Statement of Changes in Liabilities Subordinated to Claims of General Creditors

For the year ended December 31, 2024

The Company has no subordinated liabilities as of December 31, 2024 and 2023.



SCHEDULE II

Assets 868,278,961

Liabilities 663,216,360

Equity as per books 205,062,601

Adjustments to Equity per books

Add (Deduct):

        Allowance for market decline

        Subordinated Liabilities 

        Unrealized Gain / ( Loss ) in proprietary accounts

        Deferred Income Tax (7,960,515) 

        Deposit for Future Stock Subscription (No application with SEC) - 

        Minority Interest - 

Total Adjustments to Equity per books (7,960,515) 

Equity Eligible For Net Liquid Capital 197,102,086

Contingencies and Guarantees

Deduct:    Contingent Liability

                Guarantees or indemnities

Ineligible Assets

a. Trading Right and all Other Intangible Assets (net) 10,044,838

b.  Intercompany Receivables

c.  Fixed Assets, net of accumulated and excluding those used as collateral 582,941

d.  Prepayment from Client for Early Settlement of Account

e.  All Other Current Assets 24,588,844

f.   Securities Not Readily Marketable 70,000

g.  Negative Exposure (SCCP)

h.  Notes Receivable (non-trade related)

i.   Interest and Dividends Receivables outstanding for more than 30 days

j.   Ineligible Insurance claims 

k.  Ineligible Deposits

l.   Short Security Differences

m. Long Security Differences not resolved prior to sale

n.  Other Assets including Equity Investment in PSE 114,434,341

Total ineligible assets 149,720,964

Net Liquid Capital (NLC) 47,381,122

Less:

          Operational Risk Reqt (Schedule ORR-1) 13,737,721

          Position Risk Reqt (Schedule PRR-1) 2,533,714

          Counterparty Risk (Schedule CRR-1 and detailed schedules) 6,343

          Large Exposure Risk (Schedule LERR-1, LERR-2, LERR-3)

              LERR to a single client (LERR-1)

              LERR to a single debt (LERR-2)

              LERR to a single issuer and group of companies (LERR-3)

Total Risk Capital Requirement ( TRCR ) 16,277,778

Net RBCA Margin (NLC-TRCR) 31,103,344

Liabilities 663,216,360

Add:  Deposit for Future Stock Subscription (No application with SEC)

Less:  Exclusions from Aggregate Indebtedness

          Subordinated Liabilites 

          Loans secured by securities

          Loans secured by fixed assets

          Others

Total adjustments to AI

Aggregate Indebtedness 663,216,360

5% of Aggregate Indebtedness 33,160,818

Required Net Liquid Capital (> of 5% of AI or P5M) 33,160,818

Net Risk-based Capital Excess / ( Deficiency ) 14,220,304

Ratio of AI to Net Liquid Capital 1400%

RBCA Ratio (NLC / TRCR) 291%

PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC.

RISK-BASED CAPITAL ADEQUACY WORKSHEET

December 31, 2024



SCHEDULE III

PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC.

Information Relating to Possession or Control Requirements under Appendix F 

of SRC Rule 49.2.1

For the year ended December 31, 2024

1 Customers' fully paid securities and excess margin securities not in the broker's or dealer's

possession or control as of the report date (for which instructions to reduce to possession or

control had been issued as of the report date ) but which the required action was not taken by

respondent within the time frame specified under SRC Rule 49.2.1:

Market Valuation ___________________________ P         NA                    

Number of Items ___________________________ ____________________

2 Customer's fully paid securities and excess margin securities for which instructions to reduce the

possession or control had not been issued as of the report date , excluding items arising from 

"temporary lags which resulted from normal business operations " as permitted under SRC Rule 49.2.1:

Market Valuation ___________________________ P         NA                    

Number of Items ___________________________ ____________________



SCHEDULE IV

PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC.

RESERVE FORMULA COMPUTATION Under SRC Rule 49.2

December 31, 2024

Particulars Credit Debit

1.   Free credit balance and other credit balance in customers' security accounts ₱ 646,922,594 ₱ - 

2.   Monies borrowed collateralized by the securities carried for the account of customers - - 

3.   Monies payable against customers' securities loaned. - - 

4.   Customers' securities failed to receive 2,888,413 - 

5.   Customer balances in firm accounts which are attributable to principal sales to customer. - - 

6.   Market Value of stock dividends, stock splits and similar distributions receivable - - 

      outstanding over 30 calendar days old. - - 

7.   Market Value of the short security count differences over 30 calendar days old - - 

8.   Market Value of short securities and credits (not to be offset by long or by debits) in all - - 

      suspense accounts over 30 calendar days. - - 

9.   Market Value of securities which are in transfer in excess of 40 calendar days and have - - 

      not been confirmed to be in transfer by the transfer agent or the issuer during the 40 days. - - 

10. Debit balances in customers' cash or margin accounts excluding unsecured accounts - 14,523,066 

       and accounts doubtful of collection. - - 

11. Securities borrowed to effectuate short sales by customer and securities borrowed - - 

       to make delivery on customers' securities failed to deliver - - 

12.  Failed to deliver customers' securities not older than 30 calendar days. - - 

13.  Others - - 

Total ₱ 649,811,007 ₱ 14,523,066 



SCHEDULE IV

PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC.

RESERVE FORMULA WORKSHEET

December 31, 2024

1. Free Credit balances and Other Credit Balances in Customer Securities Accounts

Unadjusted trial balance amount ₱ 649,248,053      

A. Additions:

1.   Bank Account Overdrafts/1 ₱ -                     

2.  Credit balances in customer omnibus accounts -                     

3.  Any other customer credit balance not accounted for elsewhere (explain nature) -                     

Subtotal ₱ -                     

B. Deductions:

1.  Credit Balances in the accounts of non customers such as ₱ 2,325,459          

general partners and principal officers

2.  Credit balances in customers' cash accounts arising from the

sale of a security not delivered if the securities are purchased by

the broker-dealer for its own account and have not been resold

Subtotal ₱ 2,325,459          

Adjusted total line item #1 ₱ 646,922,594      

2. Monies Borrowed Collateralized by Securities carried for the Accounts of 

Customers

Unadjusted trial balance amount customer loan ₱ -                     

Unadjusted trial balance amount commingled loan/2 ₱ -                     

Adjusted total line item #2 ₱ -                     

3. Monies Payable Against Securities Loaned

Unadjusted trial balance amount ₱ -                     

A. Additions:

1.  The amount by which the market value of customers securities

loaned exceed the collateral value received from lending os such securities -                     

Adjusted total line item #3 ₱ -                     

4. Customer Securities Failed to Receive (as Determined by Allocation or Specific

Identification)

Unadjusted Balance: ₱ -                     

A. Additions:

1.  The amount by which the market value by which fails to receive -                     

outstanding for more than 34 calendar days exceed their contract value/3

2.  Clearing Accounts with net credit balances attributable to 2,888,413          

customers transactions.  (Clearing Corporations)

3.  Unsecured customer short positions which allocate to customer -                     

long positions/4

4.  Any other credit not accounted for elsewhere in the formula



Subtotal ₱ 2,888,413          

Adjusted total line item #4 ₱ 2,888,413          

5. Credit balances in Firm Accounts which are Attributable to ₱ -                     

Principal Sales to Customers/5

6. Market Value of Stock Dividends and Splits Outstanding Over 30 ₱ -                     

Calendar days / 5 / 6

7. Market Value of Short Security Count Differences over 30 calendar ₱ -                     

days old (not to be offset by long count differences)

8. Market Value of Short Securities and Credits (not to be offset by loans ₱ -                     

or debits) in all Suspense Accounts over 30 calendar days old

1.  Credit Balances Only -                     

2.  Security Positions Only / 5 -                     

3.  Security Positions with Related Balances / 5 / 7 -                     

Adjusted total line item #8 ₱ -                     

9. Market Value of Securities in Transfer in Excess of 40 Calendar Days which have ₱ -                     

not been confirmed to be in transfer by the Transfer Agent of the issuer during 40 days

Aggregate Credit Items ₱ 649,811,007      

10. Debit Balances in customers' cash and margin accounts excluding 

Unsecured Accounts and Accounts Doubtful of Collection

Unadjusted trial balance ₱ 28,007,889        

A. Additions:

1.  Debit balance in customer omnnibus accounts -                     

2.  Any other customer debit balance not accounted for elsewhere (explain nature) -                     

Subtotal ₱ -                     

B. Deductions:

1.  Unsecured balances and accounts doubtful of collection ₱ 429,855             

2.  Debit balances in the accounts of non-customers such as

general partners and principal officers 253,522             

3.  Reduction of margin debits for undue concentration of collateral/8 -                     

4.  Deficits in customer-related omnibus accounts/9 -                     

5.  Debit Balances in accounts of household members and -                     

affiliated members/10

6.  Reduction if unduly concentrated margin account balances/11 -                     

7.  Reduction of debit balances of accounts jointly owned by -                     

customers and non-customers/12

8.  Reduction for partly secured cash accounts 12,654,748        

Subtotal ₱ 13,338,125        

Subtotal of Adjusted Total Debits ₱ 14,669,764        

Reduce Subtotal by 1% 1%

Adjusted total line item #10 ₱ 14,523,066        



11.  Prepayment from Client for Early Settlement of Account ₱ -                     

12. Securities Borrowed to Effectuate Short Sales by Customers and Securities Borrowed ₱ -                     

to make delivery on Customers' Securities Borrowed to make delivery on Customers'

13. Fails to Deliver oc Customer Securities not older than 30 calendar days (as ₱ -                     

determined by Allocation or Specific Identification)

Unadjusted Balance ₱ -                     

A. Additions

1.  Clearing Accounts with net debit balances attributable to

customer transactions (Clearing Corporations) -                     

2.  Drafts receivable outstanding less than 30 calendar days

related to customer transaction / 13 -                     

Subtotal -                     

B. Deductions

1.  Securities which are in the firm's physical possession and ₱ -                     

control and in excess of the broker-dealer's possession and 

control requirements for three business days past settlement.

2.  Others (explain nature) -                     

Subtotal ₱ -                     

Adjusted line item # 13 ₱ -                     

Aggregate Debit items ₱ 14,523,066        

B. Determination of Requirements

Aggregate Credit Items ₱ 649,811,008      

Aggregate Debit Items 14,523,066        

Net Credit/(Debit) ₱ 635,287,942      

Required Reserve (100% of Net Credit if making a weekly computation

or 105% if monthly) ₱ 635,287,942      

C. Frequency of Computation

Monthly, if:

1400%

AND

₱ 646,922,595          

D. Special Reserve Bank Account Balance

Special Reserve Account balance Prior to Computation ₱ 643,186,813      

Less:  Deposit Required 635,287,942      

Additional Deposit Required ₱ -                     

Note:  Deposit should be made no later than 10 a.m. on the second banking day

following computation date.



SCHEDULE V

PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC.
Report Describing Material Inadequacies Found to Exist or Found to Have Existed Since the 
Previous Audit 
For the year ended December 31, 2024

No material weaknesses in the internal control or material inadequacies in the practices and
procedures for safeguarding securities were found since the date of the previous report.





SCHEDULE VI

PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC.
Results of Monthly Securities Count Conducted Pursuant to SRC Rule 52.1.10, As Amended
For the year ended December 31, 2024

There is no discrepancy in the result of securities count conducted. Refer to the 
attached summary.
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SCHEDULE VII

PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC.

Schedule of Financial Soundness Indicators

Pursuant to the Revised Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 68

2024 2023
Liquidity Ratio

Current Ratio
Current Assets 734,501,840       714,666,405       
Current Liabilities 659,720,644       635,151,577       

1.11                      1.13                    

Quick Ratio
Quick Assets 728,020,677       706,761,122       
Current Liabilities 659,720,644       635,151,577       

1.10                      1.11                      

Solvency Ratio
Debt to Equity Ratio

Total Liabilities 663,216,360       640,988,411       
Total Equity 205,062,601       198,945,297       

3.23                      3.22                      

Asset to Equity Ratio
Total Assets 868,278,961       839,933,708       
Total Equity 205,062,601       198,945,297       

4.23                      4.22                      

Profitability Ratio
Return on Assets

Net Profit 4,254,522            1,727,686            
Total Assets 868,278,961       839,933,708       

0.49% 0.21%

Return on Equity
Net Profit 4,254,522            1,727,686            
Total Equity 205,062,601       198,945,297       

2.07% 0.87%

Net Profit Margin
Net Profit 4,254,522            1,727,686            
Revenues 32,743,162          26,625,712          

12.99% 6.49%



Annex 1

PHILSTOCKS FINANCIAL, INC.
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR FEE RELATED INFORMATION
December 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023

Total Audit Fees 177,500 177,500

Non-audit services fees:
Other assurance services -                  -                              
Tax services -                  -                              
All other services -                  -                              

Total Non-audit Fees -                  -                              

Total Audit and Non-audit Fees 177,500 177,500

Note:
Agreed fees (excluding out of pocket expenses and taxes) with the external auditor and its network
firm for the audit of Philstocks Financial, Inc.'s financial statements.
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